é,/.\ PUBLIC MEETING
o OF THE BOARD OF EDUCATION
School District 42

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows

District Education Office
22225 Brown Avenue

Date: Wednesday, December 3, 2025 Maple Ridge BC V2X 8N6
Time: 6:00pm
AGENDA

A. OPENING PROCEDURES ITEM 1

1. Territory Acknowledgement

2. Call to Order

3. Correspondence

4, Approval of Agenda

5. Invitation for Public Input to matters on the Agenda - Members of the public can provide input on

decision items on the public meeting Agenda in writing by no later than 30 minutes before the start of the meeting. All public
input received will be shared with trustees electronically.

6. Approval of Minutes

B. PRESENTATIONS - Individuals and groups invited by the Board to make presentations on any subject pertinent to Board
business. Time limits for individual presentations will be established to allow all speakers to present within the time limit for this
item. This agenda item has a time limit of 20 minutes including questions, extension is at the discretion of the Board.

1. K to 3 Literacy Initiatives ITEM 2

C. DELEGATIONS - 7he Board will receive delegations on subjects pertinent to Board business if approved by the Agenda
Preparation Committee. Each delegation is allotted time within a 20-minute total limit, including questions. Extensions are at the
Board'’s discretion. Delegations are typically received for information, and the Board may take action after due deliberation.

D. DECISION ITEMS

1. Chairperson
2. Superintendent of Schools
a) Student Advisory Committee Terms of Reference ITEM 3
b) School Growth Plans ITEM 4
3. Secretary Treasurer

a) Preliminary Budget Process and Consultation Timeline for 2026/27 ITEM 5

4, Board Committees
a) Finance
i. First Quarter Financial Statements for 2025/26 ITEM 6
b) Facilities Planning
C) Board Policy Development

d) Education Advisory
e) Accessibility Advisory

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 1



5. Indigenous Education Council
6. Trustee Motions and Notices of Motion
a) Ad Hoc Advocacy Committee of The Whole Terms of Reference ITEM 7

INFORMATION ITEMS

1. Chairperson

a) Chairperson’s Update ITEM 8

b) Trustee Appointments to Committees and Community Liaison Groups ITEM 9
2. Superintendent of Schools

a) Superintendent’s Update ITEM 10
3. Secretary Treasurer
4, Committee Business

a) Finance

b) Facilities Planning

C) Board Policy Development

d) Education Advisory
e) Accessibility Advisory

5. Indigenous Education Council
6. Trustee Reports

a) City of Maple Ridge Municipal Advisory Committee on Accessibility ITEM 11
Committee

b) City of Maple Ridge Liveable Community Advisory Committee ITEM 12
C) City of Pitt Meadows Community Support & Accessibility Committee ITEM 13

QUESTION PERIOD ITEM 14

Question period will be restricted to questions only — statements and debate will not be permitted. Questions, with the
exception of trustee questions, will be limited to one question per person. Members of the public can submit
questions for the Board in writing by no later than 30 minutes before the start of the meeting. Questions will be
answered in the order they are received. This agenda item has a time limit of 10 minutes, extension is at the discretion
of the Board.

OTHER BUSINESS

1. Public Record of Closed Meeting Business ITEM 15

ADJOURNMENT

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 2



’D Public Board Meeting
A December 3, 2025
School District 42 Decision Memo
Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows Item 1

From: Elaine Yamamoto, Board Chairperson

Topic: Opening Procedures

1. TERRITORY ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

We would like to acknowledge that this meeting is taking place on the shared
traditional and unceded territories of Katzie First Nation and Kwantlen First Nation. We
welcome and recognize all First Nations, Métis, and Inuit students and families in our
schools and community. We welcome and recognize the many different cultures that
are represented in our schools and community.

2. CALL TO ORDER

3. CORRESPONDENCE
e 2025-11-07 Letter from Board Chair re: Letter of Support for McKenney Creek
Restoration Project
(Attachment A)
Recommendation:

THAT the Board receive the correspondence, for information.

4. APPROVAL OF AGENDA
Recommendation:

THAT the Agenda be approved as circulated.

5. INVITATION FOR PUBLIC INPUT ON DECISION ITEMS

Members of the public can provide input on decision items on the public meeting
Agenda by emailing board@sd42.ca by no later than 30 minutes before the start of
the meeting. The email subject line should read: INPUT regarding Decision Item. All
public input received will be shared with trustees electronically.

6. APPROVAL OF MINUTES
Recommendation:

THAT the Minutes of the November 12, 2025 Public Board meeting be approved as
circulated.

(Attachment B)

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 3


mailto:board@sd42.ca

ATTACHMENT A

&

Schol District 42

November 7, 2025 Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows

Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

To Whom it May Concern,

Letter of Support — Alouette River Management Society (ARMS) McKenney Creek
Restoration Project

On behalf of the Board of Education for School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows),
I am pleased to provide this letter of support for the Alouette River Management Society
(ARMS) and their McKenney Creek Restoration Project in Maple Ridge, BC.

Since its founding in 1993, ARMS has been a respected leader in environmental education
and stewardship within our community. Their work in salmon habitat conservation, native
plant restoration, and community engagement has provided valuable hands-on learning
opportunities for local students and fostered a strong sense of environmental responsibility

among young people in our district.

The proposed McKenney Creek Restoration Project (July 2026 - August 2028) at
Westview Park will continue this important legacy by restoring vital salmon habitat, improving
stream health, and deepening community connection to the watershed. Project highlights
include:

« Riparian Habitat Restoration: Removal of invasive species and planting of over 300
native trees and shrubs to stabilize streambanks and improve water quality.

e Community Engagement: Volunteer litter clean-ups, educational workshops, and
outreach events for residents and park users.

e Youth Involvement: Partnerships with Laity View Elementary and Westview
Secondary to provide students with experiential learning through stream monitoring,
water testing, and watershed studies.

o Indigenous Collaboration: Collaboration with Katzie First Nation to incorporate
Traditional Ecological Knowledge into project planning and stewardship.

For our students, these initiatives represent powerful, real-world learning experiences that
connect classroom studies to environmental stewardship, sustainability, and reconciliation in
action. The project not only enhances local biodiversity and water quality but also strengthens
our shared commitment to climate resilience, Indigenous collaboration, and community-based

education.

The Board of Education for School District 42 fully supports ARMS’ application to the EcoAction
program. We believe the McKenney Creek Restoration Project will yield lasting ecological and
educational benefits for the students and families of our district and for the broader Maple
Ridge-Pitt Meadows community.

ine Yarhamoto, Chairperson
School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge — Pitt Meadows)

Cc: The Board of Education, School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows)
Teresa Downs, Superintendent of Schools & CEO
Richard Rennie, Secretary Treasurer

School District No. 42 | Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows
2025-12-03 Public Boafd Medtifig Kgenad Packads e page 42X N6

Phone: 604.463.4200 | Fax: 604.463.4181

www.sd42.ca




ATTACHMENT B

é,/—\> MINUTES OF THE
e PUBLIC BOARD OF EDUCATION MEETING
SChOOlMQEIQdE{ggt’FMé% Wednesday, November 12, 2025 (6:00 PM)

Boardroom, District Education Office

IN ATTENDANCE:

Chairperson - Elaine Yamamoto Superintendent - Teresa Downs
Vice Chairperson - Kim Dumore Secretary Treasurer - Richard Rennie
Trustee — Hudson Campbell Deputy Superintendent - Cheryl Schwarz
Trustee - Mike Murray Assistant Secretary Treasurer - Iris Mo
Trustee - Pascale Shaw Senior Manager, Communications - Irena Pochop
Trustee - Katie Sullivan Executive Coordinator — Rebecca Lyle

ABSENT:

Trustee - Gabriel Liosis

GUESTS:
Jeannie Harnett, Program Manager, Community Connections and Healthy Living/Food Security

A. OPENING PROCEDURES

1. Territory Acknowledgement

The Chairperson acknowledged that this meeting is taking place on the shared traditional and
unceded territories of Katzie First Nation and Kwantlen First Nation. The Chairperson welcomed and
recognized all First Nations, Métis, and Inuit students and families in our schools and community.
The Chairperson welcomed and recognized the many different cultures that are represented in our
schools and community.

2. Call to Order
The Chairperson called the Public Board meeting to order at 6:01pm.
B. ANNUAL ORGANIZATIONAL MEETING MATTERS

1. Annual Report of the Chairperson

Chairperson Yamamoto presented the Annual Report of the Chairperson, reporting on the Board’s
key strategic initiatives for 2024/25.

Moved/Seconded
THAT the Board receive the Annual Report of the Chairperson for information.
CARRIED

2. Nomination and Election of Board Officers

Moved/Seconded

THAT the Board proceed to elect a new Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson following the approved
nomination and election procedure.

CARRIED

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 5



Public Board Meeting Minutes — November 12, 2025
Page 2 of 6

The Secretary Treasurer facilitated the nomination and election process for Chairperson and Vice-
Chairperson.

The Secretary Treasurer called for nominations for Chairperson of the Board for a one-year term.
A seconder was not required for nominations.

Trustee Murray nominated Trustee Yamamoto.

There were no further nominations. The Secretary Treasurer asked Trustee Yamamoto if she
accepted the nomination.

Trustee Yamamoto Accepted the nomination.

The Secretary Treasurer called for a second time for nominations for Chairperson of the Board for
a one-year term. The Secretary Treasurer called for a third and final time for nominations for the
position of Chairperson of the Board. There were no other nominations.

It was then announced by acclamation that the duly elected Chairperson of the Board of
Education of School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows) for a one-year period ending
October 2026 is Trustee Yamamoto.

The Secretary Treasurer called for nominations for the position of Vice-Chairperson of the Board for
a one-year term. A seconded was not required for nominations.

Trustee Campbell nominated Trustee Dumore.

There were no further nominations. The Secretary Treasurer asked Trustee Dumore if she accepted
the nomination.

Trustee Dumore Accepted the nomination.

The Secretary Treasurer called for a second time for nominations for Vice-Chairperson for a one-
year term. The Secretary Treasurer called for a third and final time for nominations for Vice-
Chairperson for a one-year term. There were no other nominations.

It was then announced by acclamation that the duly elected Vice-Chairperson of the Board of
Education of School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows) for a one-year period ending
October 2026 is Trustee Dumore.

The Board Chairperson and Vice-Chairperson thanked everyone.

C. OPENING PROCEDURES FOR ORDINARY BUSINESS MEETING MATTERS

1. Correspondence

e 2025-10-22 Letter from Board Chair to Minister Sharma re: Tobacco Litigation
Settlement

e 2025-10-31 Letter from Min. Beare to Board Chair re: National School Food Program
Funding Allocation

Moved/Seconded
THAT the Board receive the correspondence, for information.
CARRIED

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 6



Public Board Meeting Minutes — November 12, 2025
Page 3 of 6

2. Approval of Agenda

Moved/Seconded
THAT the Agenda be approved as circulated.
CARRIED

3. Invitation for Public Input to matters on the Agenda

The Chairperson advised that members of the public were able to provide input on decision items
on the Agenda by emailing board@sd42.ca by no later than 30 minutes before the start of the
meeting.

No public input was received.

4. Approval of Minutes

Moved/Seconded
THAT the Minutes of the October 22, 2025, Public Board Meeting be approved as circulated.
CARRIED

D. PRESENTATIONS
1. Food Securit
Program Manager, Jeannie Harnett, provided an update on the district’s food security initiatives.
Moved/Seconded
THAT the Board receive the presentation on Food Security, for information.
CARRIED
E. DELEGATIONS
F. DECISION ITEMS

1. Chairperson

a) Board of Education Work Plan

The Secretary Treasurer presented the proposed annual work plan for the board, noting
amendments that align with the approved board meeting schedule and the Board’s Operational
Plan. He outlined the specific changes and the rationale.

Moved/Seconded
THAT the Board approve the proposed Board of Education Annual Work Plan for posting on the

school district website.
CARRIED

2. Superintendent of Schools

a) Non-Resident: One-year Graduation Fee

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 7


mailto:board@sd42.ca

Public Board Meeting Minutes — November 12, 2025
Page 4 of 6

The Superintendent reported that in 2024/25 the International Education Department, with Board
approval, implemented a supplemental $2,000 tuition fee for non-resident students enrolled in a
one-year graduation program. Internal processes have since been streamlined to align with ministry
policy, allowing students to meet graduation requirements within eight courses at their assigned
school. The Superintendent further reported that federal immigration policy changes have affected
recruitment for non-resident learners and also added that neighbouring districts do not charge this
fee that impacts competitiveness.

Moved/Seconded
THAT the Board approve the removal of the $2,000 one-year graduation fee for non-resident fee

paying students effective for the 2026/27 school year.
CARRIED

3. Secretary Treasurer

4. Board Committees
a) Finance
b) Facilities Planning
c) Board Policy Development

i. Board Policies for Approval

The Superintendent reported that no feedback was received during the consultation period
(September 18 to October 29, 2025) for two new policies: 9400 Emergency Preparedness and 9405
Unexpected Health Emergencies at Schools, as well as the updated policy 10820 Political Activities.

Moved/Seconded
THAT the Board approve the following new and updated policies:

e 9400: Emergency Preparedness
e 9405: Unexpected Health Emergencies at Schools

e 10820: Political Activities
CARRIED

d) Education Advisory
e) Accessibility Advisory

5. Indigenous Education Council

6. Trustee Motions and Notices of Motions

Trustee Murray presented a motion to request the Board Chair to establish an Ad hoc Advocacy
Committee.

Discussion ensued regarding an amendment to substitute the word "Committee” with “Committee
of the Whole.”

Moved/Seconded

THAT the Board request the Chair to establish an ad hoc advocacy Committee of the Whole to
develop and implement a strategy to advocate for a more equitable allocation of CommunityLINK
funding, the Equity of Opportunity Supplement, and National School Food Program funding from
the Ministry of Education and Child Care.

CARRIED AS AMENDED

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 8



Public Board Meeting Minutes — November 12, 2025
Page 5 of 6

G. INFORMATION ITEMS

1. Chairperson
2. Superintendent of Schools

a) Late French Immersion Transition

The Superintendent shared that Golden Ears Elementary has offered Late French Immersion since
2003, with 50 students currently enrolled in Grades 6 and 7 for the 2025/26 school year. It was
further shared that beginning in 2026/27, the program will transition to the new Eric Langton
Elementary to better support growth, collaboration, and resource efficiencies. The move will also
alleviate enrolment pressures at Golden Ears and place students and staff within a larger French
Immersion community. By 2027/28, the transition will be complete, and Eric Langton will serve as
the permanent site for the district’s Late French Immersion program.

Moved/Seconded
THAT the Board receive the Late French Immersion transition plan for information.

CARRIED

b) Superintendent’s Update

The Superintendent presented an update on the following topic:
e Proficiency Scales and Learning Progressions

Moved/Seconded
THAT the Board receive the Superintendent’s Update, for information.
CARRIED

3. Secretary Treasurer
4. Committee Business

a) Finance
b) Facilities Planning
c) Board Policy Development

i. Policies for Consultation

The Superintendent and Secretary Treasurer reported that the Board Policy Development
Committee met, reviewed, and is proposing updates to the following policies outlined in the agenda
package: 2900 Trustee Professional Development and Attendance at Conferences, 2925 Provision
of Resources for Trustees, 4203 Financial Planning and Reporting, 8901 Field Trips (Including Extra-
Curricular Activities), and 9611 Child Protection. Input from education partners and the public is
invited from November 13, 2025 to January 13, 2026.

Moved/Seconded
THAT the Board receive the draft updates to the following policies for information and continuation
of the consultation process:
e 2900: Trustee Professional Development and Attendance at Conferences
e 2925: Provision of Resources for Trustees
e 4203: Financial Planning and Reporting
e 8901: Field Trips (Including Extra Curricular Activities)
e 9611: Child Protection
CARRIED

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 9



Public Board Meeting Minutes — November 12, 2025
Page 6 of 6

d) Education Advisory

i Receiving Minutes of Meetings

Moved/Seconded

THAT the Board receive the Education Advisory Committee minutes for the meeting held on
November 5, 2025, for information.

CARRIED

e) Accessibility Advisory

5. Indigenous Education Council
6. Trustee Reports

BCSTA Provincial Council
No further comments from Trustee Murray from the meeting held on October 24, 2025.

District Parent Advisory Council
No further comments from Trustee Murray from the meeting held on October 30, 2025.

City of Maple Ridge Engaged, Healthy Community Advisory Committee
Trustee Murray highlighted that the City’s Recreation Fee Subsidy Program will be going forward to
City Council for finalization, referenced from the November 6, 2025 committee meeting.

H. QUESTION PERIOD
No questions were received.
I. OTHER BUSINESS

J. ADJOURNMENT
Moved/Seconded

THAT the Board adjourn the meeting.
CARRIED

The Public Board Meeting adjourned at 7:45pm.

Elaine Yamamoto, Chairperson Richard Rennie, Secretary Treasurer

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 10



’) Public Board Meeting
/\ December 3, 2025
School District 42 Information Memo
Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows Item 2

From: Elaine Yamamoto, Chairperson

Topic: K to 3 Literacy Initiatives

BACKGROUND

The following staff member has prepared a presentation on K to 3 Literacy Initiatives:

e Jovo Bikic, Assistant Superintendent

RECOMMENDATION

THAT the Board receive the presentation on K to 3 Literacy Initiatives, for
information.

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 11



’) Public Board Meeting

/\ December 3, 2025

School District 42 Decision Memo
Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows

Item 3

From: Teresa Downs, Superintendent of Schools

Topic: Student Advisory Committee Terms of Reference

BACKGROUND
1. At the January 17, 2024 meeting, the Board approved the following motion:

THAT the Board of Education direct staff to review the current district student
governance model and explore the feasibility of implementing a Student Trustee in
time for the 2026/27 School Year.

2. At the June 18, 2025 meeting, the Board received a summary of research on Student
Trustees and information on the feasibility of implementing a Student Trustee in our
district, which included the following:

The Board’s current meeting schedule limits the potential for meaningful participation
by a student trustee. Much of the discussion and analysis takes place during committee
meetings and workshops, which, while not decision-making forums, significantly shape
the decisions made at public board meetings. Expecting a Grade 11 or 12 student to
attend these weekly meetings is unreasonable. Conversely, limiting their involvement
to public meetings alone would prevent them from fully engaging or contributing
informed input.

As the Board is committed to a model that meets student needs and enables student
voice and engagement on governance matters, it is recommended that a Student
Advisory Committee be established.

A Student Advisory Committee would be a group of secondary students (Grades 10-12)
from across the district, selected through an application process or elected by their
peers. This group will meet regularly with the Board of Education. At these meeting,
the Board would invite input from the student committee members on upcoming
item(s) from the Board’s Annual Work Plan. In addition, student representatives of the
committee would have the opportunity to bring forward governance topic(s) for
discussion.

If the Board decides to proceed with a Student Advisory Committee, it would need to
be assessed and refined through the implementation process. The creation of a
Student Advisory Committee would not preclude the Board from revisiting the idea of
having a Student Trustee in the future.

At that meeting the Board approved the following motion:

THAT the Board direct staff to create a Terms of Reference for a Student Advisory
Committee and those be brought to the September public meeting for consideration.

3. At the September 17, 2025 meeting the Board reviewed a draft Terms of Reference for a
Student Advisory Committee and approved the following motion:

THAT the Board recommend that the Student Advisory Committee Terms of Reference
be forwarded to a board workshop.

4. At the October and November Board workshops, trustees continued to discuss the
intention and role of a Student Advisory Committee. From those discussions, a revised
Student Advisory Committee Terms of Reference (Attachment) has been developed.

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 12



Student Advisory Committee Terms of Reference

Page 2 of 2

RECOMMENDATION

THAT the Board approve the Student Advisory Committee Terms of Reference and
direct staff to start the work to establish the Student Advisory Committee.

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 13



ATTACHMENT

District Student Advisory Committee Terms of Reference

The Student Advisory Committee is a Board advisory committee. Its purpose is to provide a
structured venue for the members of the board to hear directly from secondary students about
Student Voice activities taking place in schools and across the district, and to engage students on
selected governance topics aligned with the Board’s responsibilities.

1. Purpose

The Student Advisory Committee (SAC) is established by the Board of Education to strengthen the
connection between school-based Student Voice structures and district-level governance. The
Committee will:

e Provide a consistent mechanism for students to report to the Board on Student Voice
discussions, actions, and impacts occurring at their schools and within the district.

o Offer trustees the opportunity to engage with students on governance topics aligned with
the Board’s Annual Work Plan.

e Supportinformed trustee decision-making through direct student perspectives that are
grounded in ongoing Student Voice work in schools.

2. Mandate
The Committee will:

e Receive reports from student representatives on:
o Keythemes emerging from Student Voice at each school.
o Actions taken or impacts observed at the school and district levels.
o Areas where further attention, support, orimprovement is needed.
e Provide an opportunity for trustees to seek student input on at least one governance topic
per meeting.
e Ensure that student perspectives gathered through school-based Student Voice processes
are shared with the Board in a clear and accessible manner.

3. Membership
The Student Advisory Committee will be composed of:

o Two student representatives from each of the secondary schools.
e Alltrustees may serve as members of the committee.
e District staff, who will attend to support the work of the committee.

4. Selection Process
Student representatives will be:

e Selected or elected through a school-determined process that aligns with Student Voice
structures.

e Appointed for a one-year term, renewable once.

e Selected based on their involvement in Student Voice and interest in representing diverse
student perspectives from their school.

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 14



5. Roles and Responsibilities

e Student Representatives

o Provide themes and reflections on Student Voice activities from their school.
Reflect a broad range of student perspectives by engaging with peers and Student Voice
groups.

o Participate in discussions and provide input on governance topics brought forward by
the Board.

e Trustees

Attend SAC meetings to listen and engage respectfully with student representatives.
Provide a clear description of the governance topic(s) brought forward for student
consideration.

o Bring Committee insights and advice back to the Board.

e District Facilitator(s)

o Coordinate meeting schedules, agendas, and logistics.
o Support students in developing and preparing their reports as needed.
o Serve as a liaison between student representatives, schools, and the Board.

6. Meeting Schedule and Format

e The Committee will meet twice per school year.
o Atypical meeting will include:

o

O O O O

7. Review

Welcome and territorial acknowledgment

Student Voice reports from each secondary school
Trustee-led governance topic for student input
Discussion, questions, and reflections

Summary of key points and next steps

These Terms of Reference will be reviewed annually by district staff and student representatives, with
any recommended changes submitted to the Board for approval.

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 15



’) Public Board Meeting
/\ December 3, 2025

School District 42 Decision Memo
Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Item 4
From: Teresa Downs, Superintendent of Schools
Cheryl Schwarz, Deputy Superintendent
Topic: School Growth Plans
BACKGROUND

The School Act stipulates that the Board of Education must approve school plans and that
school plans must be made available to the parents of students attending that school.

School plan
8.3

(1) In each school year, a board must approve a school plan for every school in the school
district.

(2) A board must make a school plan approved under subsection (1) available to the
parents of students attending that school.

Principals of all elementary and secondary schools have prepared summaries of the goals
outlined in their School Growth Plans for the 2025/2026 school year for the Board of
Education’s approval. The goals are aligned with the Board’s strategic plan and strategic
priorities. Once approved, these summary documents will be posted on individual school
websites and will also be published on the district website.

The Superintendent has reviewed and approved the School Growth Plans (Attachment) and
is recommending that the Board of Education approve the School Growth Plans, as presented.

RECOMMENDATION

THAT the Board approve the school growth plans and direct the Superintendent to
make the school growth plans available to parents and guardians of students
attending each school in the school district.

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 16



ATTACHMENT

% SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Albion Elementary

Principal: 1 @nya Dailey

Director/Assistant Superintendent JOVO Bikic

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Literacy (New goal): This year the goal is to increase the number of students meeting or exceeding
expectations in writing by June 2026.

B. Rationale
According to the district literacy data collected by classroom teachers in June 2025, the following shows the number
of students in each grade who are not yet meeting or who are minimally meeting expectations in the areas of writing.

Grade 1 Writing and Representation 19 (37%) _I

Grade 2 Meaning 27 (44%) Corgventions 33 No data No data

Grade 3 Meaning 34 (51%) (CSC?r;/\(;Lntions 40 No data No data

Grade 4 Meaning 16 (30%) (CSC?r;/\(;Lntions 29 No data No data

Grade 5 Meaning 33 (49%) (CSC?r;/\(;Lntions 43 Style 43 (63%) Form 33 (49%)

Grade 6 Meaning 29 (50%) (Csc:)arg/\zntions 38 Style 36 (62%) Form 36 (62%)

Grade 7 Meaning 20 (34%) zczozr;%mtions 31 Style 22 (38%) Form 26 (45%)

o

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

e Have primary students focus on foundational writing and representation (direct phonological awareness
instruction; provide lots of cross curricular opportunities to write)

¢ Provide intermediate students explicit instruction in style and form (Adrienne Gear resources, graphic
organizers, writing workshop)

e Teach punctuation (colons, semicolons, dialogue punctuation) and grammar (compound-complex
sentences)

o Work with school literacy liasons and district literacy helping teacher

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

School-wide write twice yearly
Classroom writing assessments
District writing data

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson:

_ _ ' ) o | | ) ) )



% SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Albion Elementary

Principal: 1 @nya Dailey

Director/Assistant Superintendent JOVO Bikic

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Numeracy (New Goal): Increase the number of students who are meeting and exceeding expectations in
numeracy in all grades by June 2026.

B. Rationale

According to June 2025 district numeracy data completed by classroom teachers, we have students across all
grades who are either not yet or minimally meeting expectations in numeracy.

Below is an average of the number of students who are either not yet meeting expectations or who are
minimally meeting expectations in all numeracy areas:

Grade 1 12 students (23%) Grade 5 | 28 students (42%)
Grade 2 12 students (18%) Grade 6 | 31 students (53%)
Grade 3 24 students (24%) Grade 7 | 22 students (37%)
Grade 4 12 students (22%)

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

Provide more hands on learning opportunities for students

Further develop number sense and basic operations

Establish grade level benchmarks for numeracy

Help students develop their confidence in numeracy

Teacher participation in a Joint Educational Change Implementation Committee (JECIC) on Peter
Liliedahl's book, Building Thinking Classrooms.

Work with the district numeracy helping teacher and attend professional development workshops
e Share professional learning at staff meetings

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

District numeracy data
Classroom assessments

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:

_ _ 26-12:05 Publio Board Meeting Agend kage ) Page °




% SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Albion Elementary

Principal: 1 @nya Dailey

Director/Assistant Superintendent JOVO Bikic

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Social Emotional Learning (Continued Goal)

While last year’s social emotional learning goal centered on resilience, we recognized the need to expand our
focus. This year our goal now emphasizes creating a safe, inclusive, and emotionally supportive school
environment where students strengthen self-regulation, resilience, and positive peer connections.

B. Rationale

The Spring 2025 Grade 5 Middle Years Developmental Index (MDI) data indicated that although students have
a strong connections to adults and peers, only 39% are absent of worries and only 43% indicate that they are
able to self regulate.

The Grade 4 and 7 Student Learning Survey data indicated that 44% of Grade 4 students feel stressed at
school and only 50% feel they can manage this stress.

The Grade 7 data indicated that only 60% of students feel they belong and only 41% rate their overall mental
health as excellent/very good.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

e Use school-wide social emotional learning programs to support the use of common language (WITS,
Zones of Regulation, Spot Emotions)

Utilize calm corners, visuals, fidgets, and movement tools

Model and teach calming strategies (e.g. deep breathing, mindful breaks)

Incorporate growth mindset language into daily instruction

Foster the developed of friendships in and out of the classroom (buddies, grade groupings, sport
progams, student leadership, and a variety of clubs)

e School-wide and in class guest presentations

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

Grade 5 MDI 2026
Grade 4 and 7 Student Learning Survey 2026

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:

_ _ e reeseRr Meeting Agend kage - Page N




%}ﬁ?ﬁ >X SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Alexander Robinson Elementary

Principal: Ramin Mehrassa

Director/Assistant Superintendent JOVO Bikic

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Continuing Goal: To create an environment where teachers can collaborate with grade-group colleagues to
strengthen literacy strategies and improve student outcomes through more consistent instruction, interventions,
and assessment.

B. Rationale

We used the district’s strategic priorities and goals as our guiding framework and surveyed staff on what they
saw as priorities for our school. Overwhelmingly, literacy was identified as an area our staff flet would benefit
from focused attention. Combining the feedback from the staff survey and our work together on growth
planning day, staff highlighted consistency and support for instruction, interventions, and assessment as key
literacy areas to address. Teachers also indicated interest in opportunities to share best practices and
resources with colleagues.

We would like to improve the percentage of students Not Yet Meeting (NYM) in the primary grades (about 7-
10%)

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

Growth Planning Day - During Growth Planning Day, teachers participated in structured, grade-based
collaboration sessions to discuss successes and challenges in student literacy. They met with adjacent grade
groups to identify learning gaps and explore ways to address them. Finally, each grade team set priorities,
reviewed resources and supports, and formalized a literacy goal for the year.

Ongoing Collaboration — Administration has committed to finding collaboration time for teachers throughout
the year to keep momentum going:

e Structured time during school-based professional development

e Allocated time during monthly staff meetings

o Teacher meetings

¢ Release time to collaborate during the school hours through coverage by admin, support teachers, and
English Language Learners teachers

Homework Club - Structuring education assistant lift hours to support a homework club a few days a week that

focuses on literacy for students

- Implementation of the the Kindergarten screener, collaboration with the literacy helping teacher, working
with our literacy liaisons to build momentum with more effective literacy practices.

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 20




D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

e Teacher engagement in collaboration activities (groups will provide feedback to admin on what goals they
are working on)

e Successful rollout of the homework club

e Student assessments — teachers are being asked to measure their literacy outcomes, related to their goals
and share back with admin

e Sharing of results and feedback from the teacher meetings throughout the school year
e Year end summative literacy data
e Kindergarten screener

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:




é:’)ﬁ::h >X SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Alexander Robinson Elementary

Principal: Ramin Mehrassa

Director/Assistant Superintendent JOVO Bikic

A. Goal (one goal per page)
New Goal: To improve student well-being, emotional resilience and mindsets.

B. Rationale

The Alexander Robinson (ARE) Middle Years Development Instrument (MDI) data revealed that student well-
being was reported as “low”. Only 31% of ARE students reported themselves as “thriving” as compared to 41%,
as the district average. In addition, staff reported significant concern for students’ emotional resilience, self-
esteem and mental health. They reported that students are struggling with perseverance, emotional regulation,
and confidence.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

Growth Mindset training — Administration held a two-hour Growth Mindset session for education assistants and
a one-hour presentation for teachers, covering its science and classroom strategies. A resource sheet was
shared to promote a growth mindset culture, and administration will continue providing new resources throughout
the year to maintain focus on this approach.

Growth Mindset assembly — Throughout the year, at different assemblies, we will dedicate time to teaching
students about growth mindset and how students can foster a culture of growth mindset at ARE.

Growth Mindset being visible throughout the school — Growth mindset posters will be distributed to all
teachers and put up around the school to remind students and adults to use growth mindset language and
thinking to develop a growth mindset culture at ARE.

BC Children’s Kely Mental Health Resource: Kelty “Kind Mind Tour” — The school is participating in the tour.
'The program is 4 weeks long and consists of weekly videos and challenges. This program will run from
November 24 to December 18. Teachers will also be encouraged to do additional work this month on social
emotional learning (SEL).

Implementation of school-wide SEL program — an SEL committee staff members that is focusing on adopting
a school-wide SEL program to support student well-being.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

e Successful implementation and follow through with planned programs

e Teacher and student engagement in growth mindset and SEL programs offered — anecdotal observations
by admin and collecting data from staff via survey in the spring

e Review of the Middle Years Development Instrument (MDI) and Student Learning Survey (SLS) data that is
collected during this school year

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:

_ _ 2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Ag PaCKage i Page 22




%} SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Alouette Elementary

Principal: ~_Jenn Gallop

Director/Assistant Superintendent Michael Scarcella

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Literacy- New Goal area this year.
To increase the percentage of students meeting or exceeding expectations in reading by implementing focused and
systematic instruction in reading strategies, including phonemic and phonological awareness.

B. Rationale

This is a new focus area for Alouette. Current data show that only 52% of students are fully meeting expectations in
reading strategies based on district reporting and classroom-based assessments. Teachers report a larger gap between
learning achievement and grade-level expectations, with noticeable gaps in foundational literacy skills.

Additionally:

e 25% of our student population are English Language Learners (ELL).

e Ofthe overall ELL student population, 25 students are in their first year of English language learning.
These factors highlight the need for targeted instruction and consistent resources to support early literacy
development.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

Kindergarten to Grade 3:
Focus on phonemic awareness using common resources:
Heggerty, Rime Magic, Lalilo, Epic, University of Florida Literacy Institute (UFLI) Foundations.

Grades 4 to 7:
Use common resources for vocabulary and comprehension:
Words Their Way, Jerry Johns Reading Inventory.

Professional Collaboration:
Monthly staff meetings dedicated to literacy discussions. Invitations for grade-group collaboration. Invitations to
targetted professional development days focused on reading strategies and interventions.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

Teachers will conduct pre- and post-reading assessments to measure growth.
Report card data from Term 1, Term 2, and late May will highlight changes in achievement.
Classroom observations and anecdotal records will track improvements in phonemic awareness and reading fluency.

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:

_ _ 2571205 Public Board Meeting Agend kage ) Page z




%@ SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Blue Mountain Elementary

Julie Clarke

School:

Principal:

Director/Assistant Superintendent  Joyo Bikic

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Continuing Goal: Blue Mountain Elementary will continue with the goal of strengthening our numeracy and literacy
instruction practices. Our intention is to increase outcomes in reading and reading comprehension by June of 2026.
In addition, we recognize the need for increased focus on student number sense and math concept retention.

B. Rationale

Blue Mountain has steadily increased our school-wide literacy interventions in both the primary and intermediate
grades. With the support of district staff, we have developed both approaches to capture the needs in early primary
as well as interventions that target decoding skills in intermediate. We are committed to continuing this important
work as we still have 25% of students in emerging or developing in reading aquisition.

We recognize that numeracy is an area that requires attention and support for our learners. Our goal is to improve
outcomes as documented on report cards for student number sense and basic math fact retention. Our teachers
are committed to improving our math program by utilizing district supports, workshops and curriculum.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

'The ongoing supports to promote literacy and numeracy acquisition include:

e Primary intervention strategies as developed in collaboration with a literacy expert

o Utlization of the new SD42 Literacy Guide and in collaboration with our literacy helping teacher

o Exploration of the kindergarten literacy screener to address early lags in literacy

¢ Intermediate intervention groups using Reading Simplified and small group instruction with our librarian and
support staff

e Encouraging a love of reading through book clubs, Harry Potter Book club, Bookfest, and engaging material

e Small math groups that target specific skills in an accessible way

o Teachers will engage in district workshops around math delivery and instruction

e Teachers will explore Coast Metro Math Resources to enhance instructions

e Exploring artificial intelligence (Al) tools to support instructional differentiation

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

Our expectation is that we will see gains in the following areas:
e Report card and assessment data that reflects growth and development in both literacy and numeracy for
students
e Early Primary Reading Assessemnt (EPRA) and Intermediate Reading Assessment (IRA) data that reflects the
ongoing literacy supports
¢ Increased engagement and excitement about math and reduced math anxiety in our students
e Increased teacher comfortability and understanding of Al tools to support and enhance instruction

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:

_ _ 2025-12:03 Public Board Meeting Ag PaCkage ) Page 24




é:’)l Dt 4>\ SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

Blue Mountain Elementary

Julie Clarke

School:

Principal:

Director/Assistant Superintendent

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Continuing Goal:; Staff is committed to building a community of care, where belonging and connection is a priority.
We continue to foster this goal with a focus on robust teaching around social and emotional literacies. Our goal is
that every student at Blue Mountain Elementary (BME) can list at least 1-2 caring adults by June 2026 that they can
go to for support.

B. Rationale

Creating a culture of connection and belonging continues to be the goal of our teaching and support staff. Our
Middle Years Development Instrument (MDI) data demonstrates that Blue Mountain has steadily improved our
social emotional outcomes and sense of connection to adults at school. The 2024/2025 MDI data demonstrates
that 78% of students can identify at least one supportive adult at school, with 56% of those naming at least two
adults. However, we want to build on this strength by ensuring that every single BME child has a sense of
connection to adults. We believe every staff member has a role in developing this culture from lunch supervisors,
teachers, educational assistants, cafeteria assistants and the school secretary. We continue to rest on the beliefs
outlined in First Peoples Principles of Learning and affirm that each child has a personal responsibility, unique
story, and contribution to the whole. We know that when children feel empowered, connected, and safe, they are
better able to handle the social and academic challenges and responsibilities common in school life.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

e Staff are committed to connecting with students beyond their classrooms by hosting after school clubs, saying
hello in the hallways, supporting conflict resolution, providing specific connection through small groups led by a
variety of staff, and through consistent emphasis on personal responsibility and community contribution.

¢ Building resilience and problem solving skills is modelled by adults, and children are empowered to solve their
issues in peaceful and proactive ways. This strengthens community and connection among all members at BME.

e Monthly themes that reflect our shared values such as kindness, citizenship, empathy, etc.

e Continued staff professional development around self-regulation by exploring the work of Stuart Shanker and
ongoing reference to the Zones of Regulation to encourage common language of social emotional literacy
throughout the school.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

e By June 2026, every child can name at least 1-2 trusted adults at the school.

e Children solving problems in increasingly peaceful, resilient, and empowered ways, as evidenced by fewer
office referrals.

e Conferences, report cards, and home communications that demonstrate growth in connections and self
regulation.

e School climate that is welcoming and inviting to all.

e Continue to analyze the Middle Years Development Index (MDI) for areas of celebration and focus.

Superintendent: Board Chairperson:




%\D SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

taple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

ci:tmax™ Environmental Community

School:

Nicole McKenzie

Principal:

Director/Assistant Superintendent Michael Scarcella

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Numeracy (New Goal): To increase students’ understanding and confidence in mathematics so that more
students are fully meeting expectations.

B. Rationale

Our summative data from 2024-2025 shows that many students struggle to understand mathematical concepts,
and 62% of students are fully meeting expectations in numeracy [this does not include students with Individual
Educational Plans (IEPs)]. We also know that math is not always a favourite subject for students. By grounding
numeracy in inquiry, nature, and community, students will see math as part of real life.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

Make Math Visible and Place-Connected
Engage students in outdoor, inquiry-based numeracy (e.g., measuring plant growth, mapping landforms, estimating
natural patterns). Use of manipulatives (natural resources).

Foster Mathematical Storytelling and Reflection
Invite students to represent math thinking through stories, sketches, patterns, and dialogue.
Celebrate mistakes and wonderings as part of mathematical exploration.

Build Teacher Confidence and Collaboration

Provide collaborative planning and professional learning to explore playful, place-based math approaches.
Share successful outdoor numeracy activities and student examples across grades during school professional
development days (Pro-D). Attend district Pro-D and use district resources.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

e Growth in student confidence and willingness to engage with mathematical challenges.

e Improved student understanding as reflected in classroom assessments and teacher observations.

e Classroom and outdoor learning documentation (photos, journals, student work) showing math connected to
place and inquiry.

e Summative learning data will show an increase in students fully meeting expecations in numeracy (from 68%
to 75% of students will be fully meeting).

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:

_ _ 2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Age Package - Page 26




é:’)ﬁtﬁ >X SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: c'usqunela Elementary

Principal: Wes Reamsbottom

Director/Assistant Superintendent JOVO Bikic

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Continuing Goal: To increase the social and emotional well-being of all learners by cultivating resilience, self-
awareness, and interpersonal skills through collaborative experiences and outdoor education. This goal will be
achieved by integrating Fine Arts-based multi-age collaboration and nature-based learning opportunities that
promote connection, confidence, and emotional regulation across all grade levels.

B. Rationale

Social Emotional Learning is foundational to student success and well-being. When students feel connected

to their peers, staff, and environment, they are more likely to engage meaningfully in learning and

demonstrate resilience in the face of challenges. Collaborative Fine Arts experiences, such as school-wide
performances and multi-age projects, build interpersonal skills and a sense of belonging. Our MDI data shows that 54%
of students never participate in music or art lessons, while only 6% engage daily. This lack of exposure highlights the
need for a strong fine arts focus in elementary schools. Music and art are essential for creativity, self-expression, and
cognitive development, providing balance to academic learning and fostering well-rounded growth. A vibrant fine arts
program ensures all students have access to these critical opportunities.

Outdoor education further supports emotional regulation, physical health, and creativity, while reinforcing Indigenous
perspectives that honour the land as teacher. Survey data shows that while concerns about pollution (52% “very much”
or “quite a bit”) and species extinction (41%) are significant, climate change and deforestation rank lower, with 38% and
18% of respondents indicating “not at all” concerned. This gap suggests a need for experiential learning that fosters
awareness and responsibility for the land. Together, these approaches create inclusive, supportive environments where
students can develop self-awareness, empathy, and confidence.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

We will continue to offer multi-age collaborative opportunities through Fine Arts initiatives such as the Talent Show
and Spring Musical, allowing students to work toward shared goals in creative and inclusive settings. Staff will
facilitate team-building sessions twice annually, with dedicated time for planning and reflection. Outdoor learning
will be expanded through enhanced access to materials, including outdoor carts, foam mats, clipboards, and
resource books tailored to each learning pod. Professional development will focus on environmental education and
collaborative teaching strategies. Student and staff surveys will guide resource allocation and ensure alignment
with community needs.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

We will measure success through a variety of data sources: Student Learning Surveys, Middle Years Development
Index, and Early Development Instrument will provide insight into students’ sense of belonging, emotional well-
being, and connectedness to peers and adults. Staff surveys will assess impact in facilitating SEL through
collaboration and outdoor learning. We will also track participation in Fine Arts and outdoor activities, and gather
qualitative feedback from students and families regarding their experiences. These measures will help us evaluate
the impact of our SEL initiatives and guide future planning.

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:




é:’)ﬁtﬁ >X SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: c'usqunela Elementary

Wes Reamsbottom

Principal:

Director/Assistant Superintendent JOVO Bikic

A. Goal (one goal per page)

To improve literacy (new goal) and numeracy (continuing goal) outcomes for all students from kindergarten through
Grade 7 by implementing targeted early literacy interventions and enhancing intermediate numeracy instruction.
This goal will be achieved through inclusive, culturally responsive practices, strengthened assessment tools, and
collaborative professional development that supports both early reading and mathematical thinking.

B. Rationale

Strong literacy and numeracy skills are essential for lifelong learning and success. Research indicates that early
identification and intervention in literacy, particularly in the primary years, can prevent long-term academic challenges
and foster confidence in young learners. Our literacy focus is driven by data showing gaps in early reading and writing. In
Grade 1, 8% of students are not meeting in writing and 14.6% in reading; Grade 2 has 10% and 17.7%, respectively; and
Grade 3 shows 3.75% in writing and 5% in reading. These results highlight the need for targeted strategies to strengthen
foundational literacy skills and ensure success for all learners.

Similarly, a well-defined scope and sequence in numeracy, especially at the intermediate level, ensures that students
build mathematical understanding in a coherent and meaningful way. Although our intermediate numeracy results are
strong, data shows that 5.5% of Grade 4 students and 4% of students in Grades 5 and 6 are not meeting expectations.
Our approach is grounded in Indigenous ways of knowing, which emphasize contextual learning, storytelling, and
community collaboration. These principles not only enrich instruction but also create inclusive environments where
diverse learners feel seen, supported, and empowered.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

We will implement literacy screening tools for all kindergarten students and monitor progress through Grade 3. Staff
will receive professional development on evidence-based literacy instruction, including tiered support strategies and
the use of decodable texts and oral language resources. In numeracy, we will develop a comprehensive 4—7 scope
and sequence map being developed by our district pilot teams, introduce benchmark assessments, and expand
access to manipulatives and culturally relevant math tools. Teachers will collaborate regularly to share effective
practices and resources. Cross-grade mentorship programs will be encouraged to foster peer support in both
literacy and numeracy. District-level support will be provided to ensure alignment with broader strategic goals and
to provide tailored resources that meet teacher and student needs.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

Success will be measured through a combination of student and staff data. For literacy, we will analyze K-3
screening results, Student Learning Survey responses, and summative report card data focusing on language

and cognitive growth. For numeracy, we will track assessment outcomes, student confidence levels, and anxiety
indicators using survey tools and comparative grade-level data. Staff feedback will be collected to assess access to
resources and confidence in delivering instruction. Parent engagement will also be monitored through participation
in literacy events and feedback on home-school connections.

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:




% SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Davie Jones Elementary

Principal; _Jennifer Beveridge

Director/Assistant Superintendent ~David Vandergugten

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Continued Goal: Literacy: To continue improving literacy outcomes for all students, including comprehension,
decoding, strategies, and engagement, with a focus on targeted instruction for our students who are not yet
meeting expectations (NYM) or minimally meeting (MM).

B. Rationale

We will continue to rely on district portal data and class meeting reviews to increase student literacy skills.
Research indicates that students’ reading skills are the single biggest indicator of future academic success.
We want to ensure that all our students become independent and fluent readers. The data below shows the
number of students by grade who are not yet meeting or minimally meeting grade-level expectation in reading.
\We plan to have targeted interventions for these students outlined in Section C.

Grade 2's -6 NYM, 14 MM Grade 5's — 7 NYM, 19 MM
Grade 3's — 12 NYM, 12 MM Grade 6's —4 NYM, 14 MM
Grade 4's — 9 NYM, 12 MM Grade 7's — 6 NYM, 11 MM

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

-Work with district literacy helping teacher.

-Reading Club before school with education assistants, support teachers, and principal to target students assessed
at NYM and MM expectations.

-Lexia Club and Amira programs to enhance literacy programs for these at-risk students.

-Continue with school wide assessment — Intermediate Reading Assessment (IRA) and Early Primary Reading
Assessment (EPRA).

- Utilizing JECIC grants to explore University of Florida Literacy Institute (UFLI) materials.

-Continue to highlight literacy/reading throughout the school (eg. Mystery Reader, Guest Readers, Principal Story Time).
-Use of K-3 Literacy Planning Guide.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

-Summative Performance Standard Data for grade groups Assessment Data (EPRA/IRA/Benchmarks)
-Closed gap on emerging readers

-Student engagement and enjoyment of literacy activities

-Ministry Learning Survey results and Middle Years Development Instrument (MDI) survey results
-Review of library circulation reports

-Reading Club intervention - monitor the growth and development specifically of Grades 3-5.

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:




% SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Davie Jones Elementary

Principal; _Jennifer Beveridge

Director/Assistant Superintendent David Vandergugten

A. Goal (one goal per page)

New Goal: Our Social Emotional Learning Goal (SEL) — To foster a school culture where students
demonstrate resilience and empathy when facing challenges, supported by the integration of social emotional
learning practices across all grades and learning environments.

B. Rationale

Resilience and empathy are foundational to student well-being, positive relationships, and long-term
academic success. In today’s complex learning environments, students benefit greatly from explicit
instruction and consistent reinforcement of social-emotional skills. By embedding Social Emotional Learning
(SEL) throughout the school environment, we aim to create a cohesive and supportive framework that helps
students navigate challenges, build supportive connections, and contribute to a safe, inclusive school
climate. During our School Growth Planning Day, staff engaged in collaborative discussions to identify key
areas where students require further development. This process highlighted a need for more targeted skill-
building. The insights gathered from staff will guide our targeted SEL initiatives and ensure that our approach
remains responsive to the identified needs of our learners.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

Strategic resource alignment and investment with school-wide SEL priorities and student needs:
-Daily SEL Integration: Embed SEL themes into daily announcements, reinforce core competencies such as
self-awareness, empathy, and responsible decision making.
-Create consistent and visible SEL presence that supports a positive school climate.
-Skill-focussed assemblies, include student voice and leadership opportunities in planning and presenting
assemblies.
-Monitoring and Reflection: establish a system for tracking SEL implementation and impact (e.g., student
feedback, behavior data, staff input).

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

-Qualitative: Growth in student self-awareness and emotional regulation.

-Strengthened peer relationships resulting in a decrease in behavioral incidents.

-Positive perceptions of school climate — feedback from students, staff, and parents as measures in the
Student Learning Survey.

-Ongoing monitoring and review of SEL impact by tracking student feedback, behavior data, and staff input.

-Qualitative: Staff engagement and ownership.

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:




%ﬁ SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

School: Edith McDermott Elementary

Principal: Christina Crump

Director/Assistant Superintendent  Dgyid Vandergugten

A. Goal (one goal per page)

New Goal: EME will increase the number of K=3 students demonstrating proficiency in foundational literacy
and numeracy skills, as measured through school-wide screeners and common performance assessments. We
will achieve this through early identification, targeted intervention, and consistent instructional practices that
build both confidence and competence in every learner.

B. Rationale

Analysis of most recent school data and staff discussions identified overlapping needs in literacy and numeracy:

e Inconsistent early identification and intervention for emerging learners.
e Foundational skill gaps in reading, writing, and number fluency.

o Greatest need identified is in early primary literacy skills, i.e., 15% of grade one students not
meeting grade level expectations in reading, 11.3% in writing.

Persistent concern in writing, as students consistently show more challenges in this area.
Greatest gaps in numeracy learning present in primary years, i.e., 13% of grade one students not
meeting grade level expectations in numeracy.

e Students’ low confidence in literacy and math tasks.

o Observational data indicates an increase in negative self-talk regarding literacy and numeracy
skills.

e Variation in classroom practices and access to learning tools.

o Teachers utilize a range of assessment tools and instructional resources, resulting in variation
across classrooms. This inconsistency impacts the ability to identify and support emerging
learners in a timely and coordinated way.

o Developing common practices and shared tools will enable more consistent early identification,
targeted intervention, and a cohesive approach to student growth over time.

\We recognize the impact foundational skills have on deeper learning as students progress through grades
kindergarten to grade seven. This goal unites both domains under a single focus on early, evidence-based
intervention and a positive, resilient learning culture.

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 30



C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

Implement consistent K—3 screening tools in literacy to identify at-risk students early.

o Kscreener, Early Primary Reading Assessment (EPRA)

Use data from school-wide assessments (e.g., writing samples, fluency checks) to plan instruction,
targeted interventions, and monitor growth.
Provide tiered literacy intervention supports and ensure alignment of strategies across grades.

o Rainbow Words, Reading Simplified, University of Florida Literacy Institute (UFLI), Heggerty
Consistency in numeracy instruction that reinforces utilization of visible learning behaviours, such as
showing work, rereading for information, checking for accuracy. Increased use of cross-curricular
opportunities to enhance understanding of the application of mathematics, as well as increased basic
math fluency practice to solidify basic math function recall.

Build a culture of growth mindset and “failing forward” by emphasizing progress, not perfection.
Strengthen home and community connections through clear communication and practical at-home
learning supports.

Ensure equitable access to numeracy resources and manipulatives through an organized, shared
inventory system and coordinated use of instructional resources, such as Math Makes Sense and Jump
Math.

Professional collaboration through monthly staff meeting progress reports, literacy discussions, and
invitations to school-based literacy professional development facilitated by staff.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

Increased percentage of students moving from not meeting to meeting and above in summative K—3
literacy and numeracy assessments.

Improved student self-efficacy and positive mindset toward learning, as observed by teachers.
Documented use of data-informed interventions at classroom and school levels.

Consistency in literacy and numeracy instructional approaches across grades, as reported by teachers.

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson:




%}ﬁ?ﬁ >X SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Ecole Eric Langton

Principal; _Kyla Cameron

Director/Assistant Superintendent Michael Scarcella

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Literacy (Continued): To reduce the number of students reading at an emerging level and improve achievement and
confidence in literacy (reading and writing) in both English and French Immersion by developing strong skills in
decoding, phonological awareness, comprehension, and oral language across all grade levels.

B. Rationale

e September 2025 classroom screening showed high numbers of students requiring intervention in literacy
(reading and writing)

¢ June summative assessment data, available on the Parent Portal, indicate that a significant number of students
are at the emerging level in reading across both English and French programs: Grade 3 — 26% of students,
Grade 4 — 23% of students, and Grade 5 — 23% of students.
Teachers consistently identified literacy as a top area of need during fall class reviews.

e French Immersion teachers all expressed that oral French proficiency directly impacts reading and writing
fluency.

e Strengthening early literacy will support equity of access, student confidence, and overall academic success.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

1. Literacy Screening and Progress Monitoring
- Implement the new Kindergarten literacy screener each term.
- Use common literacy screeners (DIBELS, CBE) to track growth and guide instruction.

2. Instructional Framework and Professional Learning
- Embed strategies from the district literacy framework and Active View of Reading.
- Provide professional development on phonemic awareness, decoding, and structured literacy (Heggerty,
UFLI, Read Well, Explode the Code).
- Continue building capacity through monthly literacy team meetings to prioritize focus areas (e.g.,
comprehension, vocabulary, oral fluency).

3. Instructional Practices and Resources
- Ensure common literacy resources across grade teams (Read Well, Heggerty, Jolly Phonics, UFLI, AlM,
Explode the Code).
- Increase access to decodable texts in classrooms to enrich, not replace, classroom libraries.
- Build identity and representation in print materials to reflect the diversity of our school community.

4. Collaboration and Equity
- Create grade-alike teams (K-2, 3-5, 6-7) to share strategies and align interventions.
- Work with Indigenous Education and ELL teams to ensure literacy supports are culturally responsive and
accessible.

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 32



D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

e Kindergarten Screener Completion: 100% of students screened each term.

o Literacy Growth Data: Increased percentage of students meeting or exceeding expectations on DIBELS,
CBE, and BC Performance Standards.

e Teacher Observation and Student Work: Less time required for basic decoding instruction; increased time
for comprehension and content-based learning.

e French Immersion Consistency: Common French visuals and oral routines evident in all classrooms.

e Equity of Access: All classrooms equipped with culturally inclusive literacy materials.

Principal: Superintendent; Board Chairperson: Date:

_ _ 2025-12-03 Public Board Meeti bnda Package - Page 33




% SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Fairview Elementary

Laura Bruce

Principal:

Director/Assistant Superintendent ~David Vandergugten

A. Goal (one goal per page)

New Goal: Fairview is starting a new goal of improving reading comprehension for all learners by working on
foundational skills and focusing on reading for meaning.

B. Rationale

e School-wide data shows 73 students are not meeting expectations in reading, which is significantly higher
than in numeracy (39 students not meeting).

o Staff identified reading comprehension as a key concern, especially in intermediate grades.

e Assessment practices and collaborative planning have already started and can be leveraged for targeted
improvement.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

1. Implement evidence-based reading comprehension strategies (e.g., reciprocal teaching, questioning
techniques, summarizing).

2. Use formative assessments to monitor student progress and adjust instruction.

3. Facilitate cross-grade collaboration and professional learning communities (PLCs) focused on literacy within
the school
Collaborate with the district literacy helping teacher to offer professional growth and workshops.

5. Integrate reading comprehension goals into school-wide events like Club Red (Read Every Day) and literacy
celebrations.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

e Improved student achievement in reading on school-based assessments and report card data.
e Increased student engagement and confidence in reading tasks.
e Reduction in the number of students not meeting expectations in reading.

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:

_ _ 25-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda kage - Page 34




% SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Fairview Elementary

Principal: Laura Bruce

Director/Assistant Superintendent ~David Vandergugten

A. Goal (one goal per page)

New Goal: Fairview is shifting from our previous social-emotional learning (SEL) goal to a new focus area -
enhancing the school climate at Fairview by supporting learners in developing stronger self-regulation,
improving peer conflict resolution skills, and building resiliency.

B. Rationale

We have spent the last two years focusing on trauma-informed practices and have had steady increases in
students being positively connected to adults in the school and at home. By contrast, learners have reported a
decrease in school climate over the last 3 years.

e Middle Years Development Instrument (MDI) data shows:
o School Climate score is 62%, which is a drop from 65% in the previous year and lower than
School Belonging (83%) and Adult Connection (78%)
o 22% of students report high levels of worry/anxiety.
o Only 44% report high self-regulation, with 14% in the low range
o Increase in cyber, physical and verbal bullying behaviours reported by learners
o Staff identified school climate as a priority area for development.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

1. Provide professional development in SEL instruction and continue with trauma informed practices.

2. Continuing to build and create positive connections for students at school.

3. Increase student problem solving and advocacy with social situations through SEL programming.

4. SEL committee is working on supporting SEL programming and implementation in our building with
resources and professional development ideas including review of programs available and inservice of
new ones.

5. Increase opportunities for student voice and leadership in shaping school culture.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

e Improved MDI scores in School Climate, Self-Regulation, and Absence of Sadness/Worries.
e Reduction in reported incidents of bullying and social exclusion.
e Increased student participation in SEL activities and leadership roles.

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:

_ _ 25-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agend kage - Page 35




school District 42~ SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Odyssey/Fairview

Principal: Laura Bruce

Director/Assistant Superintendent: David Vandergugten

A. Goal (one goal per page)

New Goal: Numeracy: To improve students’ conceptualization of numeracy skills and application of these skills throughout the
grades.

B. Rationale

In Odyssey, staff have noticed a generally low confidence with numeracy, as well as gaps in learning and misconceptions of
mathematical concepts. Many students struggle to attain and apply knowledge. Based on the SD42 assessment report in the
Parent Portal, our student performance in numeracy is lower than literacy. According to our own reporting data, many Odyssey
students are emerging or developing in numeracy.

This fact has also need noted by all Odyssey teachers in:

- 1:1 instruction with students - observations of lack of work completion and work being done incorrectly
- parent requests for support from Odyssey staff

- conversations among Odyssey staff members

The overall goal to increase student success in numeracy by supporting both their conceptual and emotional
development, as well as helping Odyssey parents with at-home instruction.

(@]

. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

We want to collaborate as a teaching team to promote consistency of instruction within Odyssey around numeracy. We will work
together towards this goal by:

- supporting parents in teaching math concepts at home by providing and modelling the use of visual and manipulative tools

- identifying and addressing evident misconceptions of math concepts pre-emptively

- helping students build confidence by encouraging perseverance and resiliency and embracing the idea of struggle as part of
the learning process (growth mindset instruction)

- model a collaborative approach to problem solving between teachers and students

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

We will measure success in the following ways:

- anincreased use of visual aids and manipulative tools

- observation of increased resiliency around challenging tasks

- observation of successful collaboration during math challenges (e.g., use of growth mindset language, a positive climate
around numeracy and especially during difficult math challenges)

- authentic demonstrations of understanding of math concepts

Principal: Superintendent; Board Chairperson: Date:

_ _ 2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Ag PaCkage ) Page %




% SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Glenwood Elementary

Principal: Michelle Davis

Director/Assistant Superintendent Michael Scarcella

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Literacy (Continued): To improve literacy outcomes for all students by enhancing reading comprehension, and oral language skills
through targeted instruction, inclusive practices, and community engagement.

B. Rationale

Recent assessments and classroom observations indicate a need to strengthen foundational literacy skills, particularly in reading
comprehension. June data suggests a growing number of students falling two grade levels below performance standards. This plan
aims to address gaps and foster a love of literacy through differentiated instruction and strategic interventions. By June 2026, there
will be a 10% increase in engagement in literacy, resulting in fewer students performing more than two grade levels behind.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

1. Instructional Practices
e Implement guided reading groups in all classrooms.
o Use evidence-based literacy programs (e.g., Fountas and Pinnell, Words Their Way, University of Florida Literacy Institute
(UFLI), Letterland, Jan Richardson, Lalilo, Haggerty ).
¢ Developing the Flex Room Study Studio for targeted support
2. Assessment & Data Use
e Conduct baseline and progress monitoring using Dynamic Indicators of Basic Early Literacy Skills (DIBELS), PM
Benchmarks, K Literacy Screener, Intermediate Reading Assessment (IRA), Early Primary Reading Assessment (EPRA), and
Elementary Spelling Inventory),
e Use data to inform instruction and identify students needing Tier 2/3 support.
3. Professional Development
e Provide professional development on differentiated literacy instruction, inclusive practices, and culturally responsive teaching.
e Facilitate monthly literacy PLCs for staff to share strategies and analyze student work.
4. Family & Community Engagement
e Share monthly literacy tips and resources via newsletters and the school website.
e Family Read Mornings.
e School-Wide Drop Everything and Read (DEAR) event with families.
5. Student Support & Enrichment
e  Establish literacy intervention blocks with support staff.
e Launch a peer reading buddy program across grade levels.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

o Track progress through assessment data (June portal data, literacy screeners, EPRA, IRA, Elementary Spelling Inventory, PM
Benchmarks, DIBELS, student portfolios, and teacher feedback.

o Adjust strategies quarterly based on data and staff input.

o Celebrate successes and share growth with the school community.

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:

_ _ 25-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agend kage - Page 37




% SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Golden Ears Elementary School

Principal: Tom Levesque

Director/Assistant Superintendent Michael Scarcella

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Literacy Goal (Continued)

To improve literacy outcomes for all students through the consistent use of assessment progressions, targeted instructional practices,
and equitable access to literacy supports and resources. The aim is to decrease the percentage of students in Grades 1-5 who are Not
Yet Meeting (NYM) expectations in literacy, currently at 16% overall, through strengthened instructional alignment and responsive
teaching.

B. Rationale

Literacy is the foundation for lifelong learning and success across all areas of the curriculum. Our current school and district data
indicate steady progress in literacy development, with continued opportunities to enhance consistency in assessment and instructional
practice. Presently, 15% of Grade 1, 21% of Grade 2, 16% of Grade 3, 5% of Grade 4, and 12% of Grade 5 students are Not Yet
Meeting expectations in literacy. These results reflect opportunities for continued growth. Building on the collaborative work already
underway, our next steps focus on aligning assessment and instruction through the use of district literacy progressions, implementing
evidence-based early literacy strategies, and ensuring equitable access to technology and resources. These actions will further support
responsive teaching and differentiated intervention, helping every learner reach their potential. This goal aligns with SD42 Strategic
Priorities in literacy, equity, and assessment, reinforcing our shared commitment to continuous improvement in student achievement
and engagement.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

Implement district literacy progressions to guide instruction, assessment, and reporting consistency across grades K—5.
Provide small-group literacy interventions based on classroom assessment data.

Collegial mentoring on UFLI implementation, continued from previous years, across all primary classes.

Strengthen staff capacity to support early literacy through targeted training and collaborative planning.

Offer Family Literacy Nights or create short video resources to model effective home literacy practices.

Establish peer reading clubs and cross-grade reading partnerships to promote a school-wide reading culture.

Ensure equitable access to literacy materials and technology for all students, with particular attention to diverse learners.
Focus available funding sources to enhance technology in the classroom.

Promote and encourage staff engagement with district literacy initiatives/work shops.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

Student Achievement: Growth demonstrated through DIBELS, PM Benchmarks, and district literacy assessment data (Fall to
Spring).

Assessment Consistency: Increased use and understanding of district literacy progressions across classrooms.

Student Engagement: Higher rates of independent reading and participation in literacy clubs/initiatives.

Parent and Guardian Feedback: Survey and anecdotal data reflecting improved understanding of and involvement in home
reading support.

Staff Reflection: Increased collaboration and confidence in delivering and assessing literacy instruction.

Reporting: June Reporting on the Parent Portal will identify the percentage decrease in NYM for Reading.

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:

_ _ 025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agend@®ackage - Page 38




éb}’\-\\._ SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

School District 42

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Golden Ears Elementary School

Tom Levesque

Principal:

Director/Assistant Superintendent Michael Scarcella

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Social Emotional Learning - Continued Goal

To foster equitable learning environments where every student experiences safety, care, and belonging, and where culturally
responsive practices strengthen connections, promote positive social-emotional development and increase the self reporting as
reflected in the Middle Years Development Instrument (MDI) data on Connectedness with Adults (12% below district
average), Optimism (5% below district average), and Self-Esteem (10% below district average).

B. Rationale

MDI results demonstrate that while many students experience positive connections and a sense of well-being, there are
significant opportunities to strengthen these experiences for all learners. Current data indicate that Connectedness with Adults
(60%) is 12% below the district average, Optimism (48%) is 5% below the district average, and Self-Esteem (66%) is 10%
below the district average.

These trends suggest that some students may not consistently feel connected, confident, or optimistic at school. Strengthening
relationships, affirming identity, and embedding culturally responsive practices across classrooms can enhance students’
overall sense of belonging, safety, and well-being, foundations essential for equitable and successful learning experiences.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

1. Strengthening Relationships and Connectedness

Ensure every student can identify at least one adult at school who knows them well and believes in their success.

Daily Breakfast Program meals, encouraging students and families to attend and connect.

School administration with teacher representatives work closely with Parent Advisory Council (PAC) to plan events that offer
opportunities for parent/guardians to interact and connect with school staff and build an improved sense of community.
Continue to foster a school culture that prioritizes kindness, care, and inclusion by incorporating these themes into our montly
assemblies and have a standing agenda item at monthly staff meetings to review and gather feedback from the staff.

2. Culturally Responsive and Inclusive Practice

Engage staff in professional learning focused on culturally responsive teaching and the First Peoples Principles of Learning.
Review classroom environments and routines to ensure they reflect and celebrate the diversity of students’ identities and
backgrounds.

Collaborate with Indigenous support workers and district staff to deepen cultural understanding and relationships.

3. Promoting Student Voice and Well-Being

Provide ongoing opportunities for students to share their perspectives and experiences about belonging with adults in the
school through clubs/actitivies/programs provided by staff.

Integrate social-emotional learning (SEL) program, selected by the staff and to be implemented this year.

Recognize and celebrate acts of care, inclusion, and student contribution throughout the school community through a school
wide recognition program.

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 39



D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

Annual review of MDI Connectedness, Optimism, and Self-Esteem trends.
Student and staff feedback on belonging, safety, and relationships.
Track and collect attendance at daily Breakfast Program

Observable increases in positive interactions, inclusion, and participation as demonstrated by quarterly surveys with Student
Leadership group.

Principal: Superintendent; Board Chairperson: Date:

_ _ 2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Ag PaCkage ) Page 40




% SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Hammond Elementary

Principal: Adam Stanley

Director/Assistant Superintendent ~David Vandergugten

A. Goal

Continued Goal: To increase the number of students achieving “Fully Meeting” or “Exceeding” provincial
performance standards in writing above 60% by the end of the 2026 school year as part of our comprehensive
focus on improving literacy outcomes across all grade levels.

B. Rationale

Performance standard data for 2024/25 school year indicated that the greatest need for improvement in
literacy was in writing competence. 15% of students are “Not Meeting” written performance standards, with
33% “Meeting”, 49.7% “Fully Meeting” and 2.7% “Exceeding”. This can be compared to reading, with 13%
“Not Meeting”, 28.9% “Meeting”, 55.5% “Fully Meeting”, and 5.6% “Exceeding” respectively.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

We will strengthen writing skills by fostering a positive relationship between universal design for learning and
students’ innate creativity, supporting both expressive and informational writing using rich, authentic, and
culturally diverse materials that include Indigenous ways of knowing. Because writing proficiency is essential

to academic success, it will serve as our baseline for measuring growth in literacy and communication skills.

We will emphasize the qualities of resilience, commitment, patience, and work ethic in our efforts to improve
together.

We will also continue professional development toward a multi-modal approach, collaborate with our school
literacy lead, teacher-librarian, and literacy district helping teacher in the implementation of the Literacy
Framework, and base assessments on the proficiencies and progressions.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

- Collaboratively develop in-house assessment strategies to employ throughout the year.

- Hold monthly goal reviews at staff meetings.

- Quantify achievement data using provincial performance standards at year end for comparison with
2024/25.

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:

_ _ 025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agend@iB8ckage - Page 41




% SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Hammond Elementary

Principal: Adam Stanley

Director/Assistant Superintendent ~David Vandergugten

A. Goal

Continued Goal: To increase the number of students achieving “Fully Meeting” or “Exceeding” provincial
performance standards in numeracy accuracy above 65% by the end of the 2026 school year as part of our
comprehensive focus on improving academic outcomes across all grade levels.

B. Rationale

Performance standard data for 2024/25 school year indicated that the greatest need for improvement in
numeracy was in the accuracy competence. 10.9% of students are “Not Meeting” accuracy performance
standards, with 29.1% “Meeting”, 56.7% “Fully Meeting” and 3.4% “Exceeding”.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

¢ Continue school-wide initiatives such as "Math Mondays," Pi Day, Hundred Day, and practical math
riddles focusing on accuracy.

e Use Indigenous connections and content from our prior work.

e Employ the new district “Diamond Assessments” to encourage school-wide uniformity in assessment.

e Collaborate with the professional development team to design and deliver meaningful, accessible
learning opportunities that support teacher growth and instructional effectiveness.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

¢ Analyze and communicate student achievement levels to staff, referencing provincial benchmarks and
district-created evaluation tools.

¢ Compare data from provincial learning standards in June 2026 against those from 2025 to understand
where to refocus efforts.

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:

_ _ 2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Age ackage - Page 42




School: Harry Hooge Elementary School

Nicole Neggers

Principal:
Director/Assistant Superintendent ~ Michael Scaracella

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Literacy — New Goal. By June 2026, increase the percentage of students at each grade level who are fully meeting or
exceeding expectations in reading strategies.

B. Rationale

Percentage of students who were fully meeting or exceeding expectations according to the performance standards data
from June 2025 specifically related to strategies of reading:

Grade 1: 51%

Grade 2: 69%

Grade 3: 75%

Grade 4: 83%

Grade 5: 66%

Grade 6: 65%

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

Implement Scholastic Laugh A Lot Phonics (one shared book per term) with common comprehension questions.
Use Syllasense books for advanced phonics patterns.

Follow District Literacy Guide scope and sequence.

Incorporate “How To” activities and English Language Learners strategies from the District Literacy Planning Guide.
Differentiate through UDL, core, small-group, and individual instruction.

Use multimodal resources and varied repetition to reinforce skills.

Use biweekly collaboration time to meet to review data, share strategies, and adjust plans.

Share students across classes to create flexible reading groups.

Attend literacy-focused professional development to stay aligned with best practices.

Engage volunteers to support small group reading.

Promote a love of reading through joyful, meaningful activities.

Teach that reading growth takes patience and time.

Celebrate progress and encourage goal setting for ongoing motivation.

Collaborate with our district literacy helping teacher and our school librarian.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

e Use Early Primary Reading Assessment (EPRA), Intermediate Reading Assessment (IRA) and PM benchmarks to monitor
progress
Use common rubrics, reassess each term
Conduct student self-assessments to gauge attitudes and engagement
e Report card data and performance standards portal data in June 2026

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:




é:’ojﬁm\ =5 SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Harry Hooge Elementary School

Principal: Nicole Neggers

Director/Assistant Superintendent ~ Michael Scaracella

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Social Emotional Learning - New Goal. By June 2026, increase the percentage of students with high well-being (thriving)
as reported in the Middle Years Development Instrument (MDI).

B. Rationale

Harry Hooge Elementary’s overall high well-being (thriving) index over the last three years are as follows:
2024-25 42% (current Gr. 6’s)

2023-24 29% (current Gr. 7’s)

2022-23 23% (current Gr. 7°s)

According to the most recent MDI data, the following percentage of students self-identified as being in the low category
in the following areas: Optimism 13%, Happiness 12%, Self-Esteem 8%, Absence of Sadness 10%, Absence of Worries
22% and Self-Regulation 15%.

This goal aligns with the school district’s strategic priority focus on cultivating resilience, developing self-awareness, and
interpersonal skills to improve the social and emotional well-being of all learners.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

e Apply $5,000 towards a school-wide social emotional learning (SEL) program to develop a consistent school-wide SEL language.

e Monthly “Living Well Series” for school-wide wellness on the announcements as well as in our weekly newsletter around the
theme of the month (connecting, active living, eating well, sleeping well, calming down, creating, relaxing, exploring and how
to get help)

e Whole class activities around wellness, Children of the Street presentations, Alouette Addictions presentations, and the school

librarian to support with books for read-alouds

Wellness Wednesdays: a weekly wellness focus

Continue to offer morning clubs to help students develop connections and help build the school community.

Create an SEL staff committee

Staff professional Development on the importance of sleep and nutrition (Fraser Health)

Embed growth mindset lessons

Continue to encourage outside play and outside learning opportunities

Continue to have school-wide events emphasizing inclusion

Continue student leadership

Continue soft starts

Continue offering calming corners in the classroom and the use of the Haven (down-regulating space)

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

MDI Data: Specifically, the 5 areas of student well-being
Student reflections and check-ins

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:

_ _ 2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting i ° PaCkage ) Page 4




% SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Highland Park Elementary

Principal: Jennifer Walker

Director/Assistant Superintendent ~David Vandergugten

A. Goal (one goal per page)

New Goal - Increase the percentage of students meeting or exceeding expectations in writing to
above 65% by June 2026.

B. Rationale

School-wide data and classroom observations show that across the grades we have 144/350 (41%)
students who are not yet meeting or minimally meeting grade level expectations in writing. Teachers
note variability in student writing confidence, stamina, and ability to organize and elaborate ideas. A
focused, consistent approach to writing instruction, supported by modeling, shared language, and
authentic purposes, will help all learners build foundational writing skills, deepen comprehension, and
find joy in communicating through written expression. Strengthening writing also supports reading,
critical thinking, and overall literacy growth.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

Provide professional learning at all grade levels on explicit writing.

Explore and evaluate programs such as “The Syntax Project”, “The Morphology Project.”
Become familiar and utilize BC Learning Progressions.

Create grade rubrics and exemplars.

Use school-wide writing samples to calibrate expectations and track growth.

Infegrate authentic writing opportunities across subject areas.

Highlight student writing through bulletin boards and newsletters.

Provide targeted small-group writing support for students below grade level.

Promote joyful writing in class and school-wide (contests, publishing opportunities).

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

e Increase in students meeting or exceeding expectations in writing on report cards and BC
Learning Progressions.

Growth in school-wide writing samples from Fall to Spring based on common criteria.
Teacher observations showing improved confidence, independence, and stamina in writing.
Student self-assessments reflecting growing confidence and enjoyment in writing.

Samples of student work demonstrating improved organization, voice, and elaboration.

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson:




é:’)ﬁtﬁ >X SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Highland Park Elementary

Jennifer Walker

Principal:

Director/Assistant Superintendent ~David Vandergugten

A. Goal (one goal per page)

New Goal - By June 2025, HPE will have greater percentage of students indicate that they are able to adapt
their behaviour or emotions to meet an immediate goal.

B. Rationale

The MDI and attendance data clearly indicate a need to support students in developing emotional regulation
and resilience.

e 43% of students are categorized as having low overall well-being, based on measures of optimism,
happiness, self-esteem, absence of sadness, and general health.

e 30% of students report low levels of absence of worries, indicating elevated anxiety symptoms.

e 28% of students report low short-term self-regulation, suggesting challenges with impulse control and
emotional management.

e Friendship intimacy is high (71%), but 17% of students report low peer belonging, indicating that not all
students feel socially connected to their peers.

e Attendance data 201/350 (57%) students have absences above 10.

Many students struggle with emotional regulation and mental health, affecting learning and relationships.
Explicit instruction in self-regulation and emotional management can build resilience, improve belonging, and
protect against worries and sadness. These strategies are linked to better motivation, academic success, and
long-term well-being. High absenteeism underscores the urgency, as improving emotional skills can reduce
absences and boost engagement. Teaching self-regulation directly supports growth mindset.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

e Select a school-wide Social Emotional Learning (SEL) program to implement.

e Develop a student and staff survey for winter and end of year.

e Provide professional learning on co-regulation and emotional literacy.

e Ensure each classroom has visible tools and visuals.

e Build daily routines for emotional check-ins, reflection, and problem-solving.

e Integrate explicit instruction on emotional vocabulary, coping strategies, and conflict resolution.

e Implement student self-assessment tools for regulation and resilience.

e Assemblies, guest speakers, bulletin boards with themes of self-regulation, growth mindset, and resilience.

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 46



D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

e Winter and end of year survey.

e Middle Years Development Instrument and Kindergarten Learning Progression (KLP) data .

o Office referral data for self-regulation related incidents.

e Attendance and engagement trends.

e Increase in positive behaviour reports or “caught being kind” recognitions.

e Education assistant and support staff feedback on student responses in unstructured settings (e.g.,
playground, hallways).

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson:




% SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Kanaka Creek Elementary

Principal: Chad Raible

Director/Assistant Superintendent JOVO Bikic

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Literacy (continued goal) — To reduce the number of students “not yet meeting” expectations in the reading
and writing performance standards.

B. Rationale

This is a continued goal as it is consistently being addressed but a gap still remains in our current numbers.
Currently, our summative assessment of our students reading performance standards hovers between 3 to 10% of
our students not yet meeting expectations in reading and 5 to 8% of our students not yet meeting expectations in
writing. Our staff is interested in working alongside district and provincial mandates to assess and address literacy
levels in our school community.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

- Primary teachers will be looking at new district K-3 Literacy planning guide during professional development days

- Classes participate in district-based literacy assessments (Early Primary Reading Assessment/ Intermediate Reading
Assessment)

- Support team will identify all Not Yet Meeting students in reading and writing and work with classroom teachers to
develop a plan of support

- Librarian works with most at-risk readers at each grade doing intervention with Reading Simplified

- Primary teachers identify students who would benefit from biweekly literacy practice with education assistant support
before school

- Various programs being used within the classroom to promote literacy growth (words their way, jolly phonics, reading
simplified)

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

- Summative performance standards data for next year

- Cohort data that follows students over multiple years

- Assessment data (Early Primary Reading Assessment/ Intermediate Reading Assessment) where applicable
- Librarian’s assessment data from most at risk readers

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:




% SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Kanaka Creek Elementary

Principal: Chad Raible

Director/Assistant Superintendent JOVO Bikic

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Continuing Goal: Social Emotional Learning — To improve the social connections for all learners at Kanaka
Creek

B. Rationale

At a recent professional development day, Dr. Jenna Whitehead and Dr. Angela Low explored with our staff the
growing research linking increased social connectedness to positive life outcomes. We explored the importance of
social connectedness and belonging in supporting regulation for both students and staff and highlighted many of
the areas and activities Kanaka already has in place to build connections. Staff also noted that, as a large school
of almost 600 students, there are new opportunities to build our sense of community. Further, we noted that while
Middle Years Development Instrument (MDI) results of students reporting 2 or more school based adult
connections are high (86% in Maple Ridge data), this still means some students do not feel connected.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

- The use of classroom sharing circles to promote connectedness in classes

- Direct teaching in classroms of social emotional learning concepts using district/ provincial programs (EASE, zones of
regulation, etc)

- Direct teaching in classrooms of pro-social concepts (Truth and Reconciliation, diversity, tolerance, etc)

- Increasing awareness of the reading content in our classroom libraries and school library that include marginalized or
minority groups

- Pod Pals (multi-graded groups of classes) that plan activities together and build smaller communities

- Continue to grow our social emotional reading library and promote it with new staff members

- Staff activity to determine students who might not feel connected and then plan for adults to build connections with those
students

- Whole school activities to build community (School Stars, Fun Fridays, assemblies, PAC led events, etc)

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

- Middle Years Developmental Index data

- Student Learning Survey data

- Indigenous Education Support Worker and Child Care Worker reports
- Fewer office referrals

- Report cards and conferences reflect increased connectedness and self regulation growth

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson:




% SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Ecole Laity View Elementary

Principal: Jenn Simon

Director/Assistant Superintendent Michael Scarcella

o Goal (one goal per page)

Literacy-Continued Goal: At Laity View, our goal is to strengthen literacy across all grade levels through a comprehensive and
inclusive approach, supporting students to become confident readers, writers, listeners, and speakers. In English, students will grow
in oral language, reading fluency, comprehension, and written expression through intentional, explicit, and responsive teaching that
reflects their diverse strengths and needs. In French, we will focus on increasing student confidence, engagement, and proficiency in
speaking, listening, reading, and writing, fostering both skill development and enjoyment of the language. At least 85% of students
will demonstrate proficiency in English or French Language Arts on the Term 3 report card.

B. Rationale

Literacy is a gateway to full participation in school, society, and lifelong learning. A comprehensive and inclusive approach ensures
all learners are supported to become critical thinkers, effective communicators, and engaged citizens. We continue to focus on
structured literacy instruction that is systematic, explicit, engaging, and success-oriented.

44% of students in grades 1-7 are fully meeting or exceeding grade level expectations based on June 2025 assessment data. Many of
our students, particularly in the primary grades, are in the emerging to developing range of the literacy proficiency scale and require
support to strengthen foundational skills in structured literacy, reading comprehension, and writing. To address this, we will
implement a comprehensive approach to literacy in both English and French, guided by the K-3 Literacy Guide, kindergarten
screening tools, and K—4 learning progressions in English.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

Provide all students with comprehensive literacy experiences in English, and for students learning French. Develop oral language,
listening, phonological and print awareness, phonics, word recognition, reading fluency, comprehension, writing, spelling,
composition, and conventions. As well as joyful, authentic and engaging literacy experiences such as drama and oral storytelling,
creative writing, playful expression, shared reading and writing, engaging with genres of a text, playful provocations, songs, music,
poetry, thymes, rhythm, and movement.

Consult and collaborate with district literacy helping teachers and, where applicable, French district helping teachers to ensure
evidence-based, responsive instruction, and create community learning opportunities for families to support literacy at home.

Implement core classroom, targeted small-group, and intensive individual instruction using an inclusive, evidence-based approach
(e.g., Multi Layered Circles of Support) to meet the diverse needs of all learners in English and, for French learners, in French.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

Literacy growth will be monitored using an inclusive evidence model, including observations, artifacts, and conversations. Early
Literacy Screeners will be used in kindergarten, progress tracked through formative assessments, and student growth measured on the
proficiency scale across Terms 1, 2, and 3.

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:




% SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Ecole Laity View Elementary

Principal: Jenn Simon

Director/Assistant Superintendent Michael Scarcella

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Social-Emotional Learning -Continued Goal: At Laity View, our goal is to strengthen students’ ability to demonstrate pro-social behaviours - such as embathy, positive peer|
interactions, self-regulation, and conflict resolution - through intentional social emotional learning (SEL) instruction, co-regulation, and a school-wide culture of
community, care, and safety. We will build on our strong sense of connection and belonging between adults and students by enhancing students’ emotional regulation,
coping skills, and overall well-being. Across all grade levels, staff will explicitly teach and model pro-social language, self-regulation strategies, and conflict resolution
skills. We will also engage families to extend these well-being practices at home.

At Laity View, our goal is to strengthen students’ self-regulation and peer connectedness to enhance overall well-being. By June 2026, we aim to:

Increase the percentage of Grade 5 students who report being able to self-regulate to 75%, as measured by the Middle Years Development Instrument (MDI).
Increase the percentage of students who report a sense of peer belonging to 85%.
Improve the percentage of students who are thriving in overall well-being to 70%.

B. Rationale

Based on the 2024-25 MDI data for Grade 5 students, 41% are able to self-regulate, and 45% are thriving in overall well-being. However,
38% report that they often or always feel they don’t belong with their peers. At Laity View, we will continue to emphasize experiential
learning, where students actively practice pro-social behaviours in real-life situations and through explicit classroom and school-wide
teaching. While students report strong connectedness with adults, optimism, and supportive relationships, we are observing an increase in
dysregulation. The data highlights the need to further support emotional well-being, peer belonging, and healthy routines. Our focus will
remain on fostering empathy, sharing, and conflict resolution through daily interactions and explicit, trauma-informed, experience-based
instruction.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

To achieve this, staff will explicitly teach and model pro-social behaviours - including empathy, positive peer interactions, self-regulation, and conflict
resolution - through intentional SEL instruction, co-regulation, and a consistent school-wide culture of community, care, and safety. Families will also be
engaged to reinforce these well-being practices at home.

Resource Selection: Explore and select evidence-based resources or programs that align with the school’s pro-social behaviour and well-being goals.
Pro-Social Behaviour Committee: Establish a committee to lead and coordinate school-wide initiatives, ensuring alignment with SEL and trauma-
informed practices.

Staff Collaboration: Dedicate time during staff meetings for collaboration, sharing strategies, and monitoring progress toward the goal.

School-Wide Teaching and Events: Host assemblies focused on empathy, self-regulation, and positive peer interactions. Implement consistent school-
wide language and problem-solving strategies (e.g., WITS — Walk Away, Ignore, Talk it out, and Seek Help).

Model and reinforce pro-social expectations in common areas such as hallways, playgrounds, and transitions.

Student Voice and Reflection: Support students in engaging in reflective conversations to repair harm and take responsibility for their actions. Provide
regular opportunities for class meetings, restorative circles, and reflection.

Community and Family Engagement: Collaborate with the PAC to support well-being initiatives and family education.

Engage families in extending pro-social and well-being practices at home.

Connection and Belonging: Use MDI and school-based data to identify and support students who may feel disconnected from the school community.
Expand acts of kindness and community service initiatives to promote care for self, others, and the environment.

Success will be shown through improved self-regulation, stronger peer relationships, and greater emotional well-being and sense of
belonging, based on student and school data (Middle Years Development Instrument), staff observations, and student engagement.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson:




% SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Maple Ridge Elementary

Principal: Chelsea Lendvoy and Vice Principal Rachael Perry

Director/Assistant Superintendent ~David Vandergugten

A. Goal (one goal per page) page)

Literacy (Continued Goal) - Increase the percentage of intermediate students to 85% meeting or extending in their overall literacy
strategies.

B. Rationale

BC Performance Standards Data in literacy showed that at the end of the 2024/25 school year 28% of grade 4-7 students fell into the
category of not yet meeting or minimally meeting in reading, specifically their ability to independently apply reading strategies. We
believe that with additional supports and targeted interventions students will develop the skills to meet or exceed grade level
expectations.

The focus area is grade 4-7, as we have observed that despite the significant improvements made in literacy by our students over the
past number of years, there remains a group of intermediate students who demonstrate gaps in their reading abilities. Reading
strategies are the building blocks necessary to read fluently and comprehend reading, which is why it is our area of specific focus.

This goal aligns with BC’s Literacy Curricular Competencies comprehend and connect, as well as our district’s strategic priorities of
literacy and equity.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

-Implement small group guided reading with a strategy focused approach for intermediate students

-Expand access to decodable and leveled texts in both French and English

-Invitations to district literacy helping teacher for professional development opportunities for staff

-Library support blocks for targeted reading intervention for intermediate students (ex. Rhyme magic, decodables, sight words)
-Use of artificial intelligence reading programs such as Amira and Reading Accelerator

-Increase access to high interest texts for intermediate students

-Regular staff sharing and collaboration opportunities with focus on increasing student engagement and effective teaching strategies
-Literacy committee to implement school-wide celebrations of literacy (ex. Poetry competitions, reading Bingo, reading challenges,
Family Literacy Night, etc.)

-Acknowledging and incorporating First People’s Principles of Learning as a school strategy: “Learning is embedded in memory,
history, and story”

-Collaborating with the Maple Ridge Public Library to encourage independent reading and incorporate literacy challenges as such
Reading Link

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

-Literacy assessments (PM Benchmarks, GB+, San Diego Quick Assessment) -Student self-assessments (fall, spring)
-Feedback from parents
-Summative report card data

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson:




éb/'»\ SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

School District 42

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Ecole Pitt Meadows Elementary

Principal: Brandy Mclntyre

Director/Assistant Superintendent ~ David Vandergugten

A. Goal (one goal per page)

INew Goal: To move primary students who are emerging or developing readers to proficient (fully meeting expectations) by Grade 3 through early
intervention with researched, high-impact instructional ‘learn to read’ strategies.

INew Goal: To move intermediate students who are emerging or developing readers to proficient (fully meeting expectations) in comprehension
through researched, high-impact ‘read to learn’ strategies.

B.Rationale

Class reviews and teacher assessments indicate significant ranges, within each class, in students “learning to read” skills (primary) and “reading to
learn” skills (intermediate). Teachers noted that increasing numbers of students have learning gaps in foundational literacy skills (phonemic
awareness, decoding and comprehending).

Performance Standards from June 2025 show students identified as not yet meeting or minimally meeting in reading strategies (primary), reading and
comprehension strategies (intermediate):

Gr 1-3 not yet mtg in strategies 14% (33 of 239 students), minimally mtg in strategies 32%

Gr 1-3 not yet mtg in comprehension 10% (25 of 239 students), minimally mtg in comprehension 37%

Gr 4-7 not yet mtg in strategies 4% (9 of 254 students), minimally mtg in strategies 22%

Gr 4-7 not yet mtg in comprehension 5% (12 of 254 students), minimally mtg in comprehension 32%

Currently 41% (26 of 63) never read or read 1-2 times for fun and 57% (36 of 63) never do homework or only do homework 1-2 days per week.
Targeted early intervention supporting reading skills positively impacts reading progress. This would then increase the numbers of students fully
meeting and decrease the number of students emerging or minimally mtg in reading, particularly as students continue through the grades.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

Professional Development ~1.Celebrate/share great literacy strategies being taught within each class by using the “wisdom within the groups”, 2.
IReview the Literacy Framework for deeper understanding, 3.Align budget priorities to support literacy goals outlined here, 4.Cover teachers so they
can observe literacy lessons in other teacher’s classrooms (supporting implementation of specific successful literacy strategies).

Support Collaborative Instructional Practice ~ 1.Provide staff requested resources for effective planning and implementation of reading and
comprehension strategies eg. phonemic awareness frameworks (e.g., Heggerty, UFLI, CBE.) and decodable texts.

Expand Targeted Student Support ~ 1.1dentify students who remain at emerging in literacy during the year for further targeted support (student
conference reports and last years performance standards), 2.Continue to use EA“Lift-Up” time for before/after school reading groups (small-group
intervention), 3.Provide education assistants (EAs) with opportunities to learn and apply literacy strategies that support classroom instruction while
students are on breaks or in alternate settings, 3.0rganize skill building reading sessions in library twice a week with any available non-enrolling
staff 4. Promote buddy reading, family reading events, 5. Host high school volunteers for reading.

Build Home—School Partnerships~ 1.Share with families classroom reading strategies being taught, and at-home literacy activities that enhance
lessons taught at school (through teacher updates to parents and school newsletters), 2.Send home books and suggestions of books that would
enhance school learning.

[Empower Student Ownership ~1.Support every student in setting one personalized literacy goal.

D.Evidence/Data (how willyou measure success?)

[Using data from last years June performance standards in literacy as a baseline, we will identify students who remain at emerging or
developing in literacy on conference reports at the end of term 1 (December 2025), and then end of term 2 (March 2026). At each
point we will identify students remaining at emerging in literacy and review how to best use targeted reading strategies to support
progress. In April/May ask for staff feedback on above literacy strategies to determine which action plans have positively impacted
reading skills and ability.

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:

_ _ 25-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agendalf®ckage - Page 53




éb/'»\ SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

School District 42

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Ecole Pitt Meadows Elementary

Principal: Brandy Mclntyre

Director/Assistant Superintendent ~ David Vandergugten

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Continued Goal - To strengthen student’s resiliency so they can manage worries, persevere through challenges, and
approach non-preferred tasks with focus, stamina, and courage.

B. Rationale

Our Grade 5 Middle Years Development Instrument (MDI) data shows that although 85% (54 of 63 students) participating in the MDI
have a high sense of self-esteem “a lot of things about me are good”, 57% (36 of 63) “feel unhappy a lot of the time,” and 56% (35 of
63) “worry a lot that other people might not like me.”

Furthermore, only 38% (24 of 63) students feel confident they “can calm myself down when I’'m excited or upset”. 26% (16 of 63)
students are not confident they have these skills.

In class reviews, coversation trends were that students were kind and eager to learn but were challenged with using tools to calm
themselves and handle big emotions and anxious thoughts. In the MDI, when dysregulated, feeling upset, or sad 25% (16 of 63)
students would go to an adult at school, 11% (7 of 63) don’t know who to go to, and 22% (14 of 63) would handle it on their own.
Students learn best when their brain and bodies are in a calm state. It is essential to help students navigate challenges and teach them
tools they can use to bring their brain and bodies to a calm state in order for them to be ready to learn and remember academic
information.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

Staff Development and Alignment ~1.Provide in-service training on the school’s selected Social-Emotional Learning (SEL) framework
during staff meetings and school-based Pro-D, 2.Support consistent, common language, 3.Align budget planning to ensure resources
and initiatives directly support SEL and resiliency goals.

School/Classroom Implementation ~ 1.Provide direct instruction in SEL and resiliency through daily classroom routines and lessons,
2. Work with our non-enrolling staff, district helping teachers to support implementation of framework and strategies, 3.Integrate First
Peoples Principles of Learning to enhance regulation through connection to identity, nature, community, (e.g., connection to identity,
class meetings, talking circles, outdoor learning, etc).

Equity and Inclusion ~ 1.Establish an anti-racism committee to facilite deeper understanding of the impact of words and actions and to
ensure inclusivity and sense of belonging in the school and community, 2.Continue learning opportunities around identity, diversity,
emotions, and empathy to deepen understanding of self and others.

Student Leadership and Peer Support ~ 1. Empower student leaders to provide input on how to strengthen resiliency across the school,
2.Offer peer mentor training so students can assist peers with problem-solving/conflict resolution at recess and lunch (common
language of school’s selected SEL framework would be part of the training)

[Home—School Connection ~ Share SEL frameworks, strategies and common SEL language with families through newsletters

Spaces for Practice and Calm ~ 1.Continue to develop spaces where students have the opportunity and tools to regulate and reflect —
such as sensory room, and calm corners in classrooms.

D. Evidence/Data (how will you measure success?)

e Pre- and post-student self-assessment to see increase in percentages of students who “have strategies to calm myself” increase in
percentages of students who “if stressed/worried/sad go to an adult at school” and decrease in percentages of students who
“don’t know who to go to” & “handle on own”.
e Feedback from staff to identify if there is an increase in the use of specifically taught SEL strategies in and outside the classroom.
e See if significant increase in the areas noted above (strategies to calm and how students handle stress/sadness ) between the
Jan 2025 MDI and Jan 2026 MDI (understanding it is a different cohort).

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:

_ _ e Meeting Agend kage - Page )




% SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Webster’'s Corners Elementary

PrinCipal: Laureen H|Ckey

Director/Assistant Superintendent JOVO Bikic

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Continuing Goal: We will continue with the goal of strengthening student literacy by focusing on the reading and thinking processes
outlined in the SD42 Literacy Framework. We will build student engagement, motivation, word recognition, comprehension, and
fluency through systematic, comprehensive and explicit instruction.

B. Rationale

Improving literacy is essential for student success, as it supports learning across all subject areas. The 2024-25 Year End Summative
Assessment data indicates that across kindergarten to Grade 3, 37% of students are still developing foundational reading skills (those
in the Emerging or Developing / Not Yet Meeting / Meeting categories).This suggests that a significant portion of primary learners
continue to need explicit instruction in phonics, word recognition, and fluency to build stronger reading foundations. For Grades 4—7,the
2024-25 Year End Summative Assessment data indicates that 33% of intermediate students are performing below the Fully Meeting
level in writing. This highlights the need for a continued focus on structured writing instruction — including idea development, sentence
structure, and written communication — across the intermediate grades. These findings align with teacher observations and reinforce the
importance of explicit instruction in structured literacy practices for younger learners and targeted writing strategies for older. A
comprehensive approach requires a wide variety of texts — including decodable books, leveled readers, and trade books — to meet the
needs of diverse learners and promote both skill development and a love of reading. At Webster's Corners Elementary, collaboration
with staff, district literacy specialists, and access to high-quality resources will ensure consistent and effective instruction. By investing
in these practices, we aim to increase engagement, motivation, and achievement for all students.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

Webster’s Corners Elementary (WCE) will implement a consistent spelling program and increase instruction in heart words and sight
words to support foundational literacy skills. Oral language development will be enhanced through daily routines and programs like
Heggerty, with support from the district literacy helping teacher. Teachers will focus on explicit comprehension strategies and small
group instruction, using curated resources and professional development opportunities. Writing instruction will be strengthened across
grade levels, emphasizing grammar, mechanics, and paragraph composition. To foster engagement and fluency, classrooms will
expand access to high-interest texts and incorporate novel studies, supported by collaboration with the school librarian and district
library services. Collaboration with our librarian, the WCE Literacy Committee, the district literacy helping teacher, and current
research will guide our practice.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

- Early Primary Reading Assessment (EPRA) data

- Intermediate Reading Assessment (IRA) data

- Year-end reading results from the district's BC Performance Standards assessment

- Student self-reflections

- Teacher observational data

- BC Performance Standards data showing improving trends over multiple reporting periods
- Writing samples

- Kindergarten Screener Data

- Classroom literacy assessments

B2 I B T




% SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Webster’'s Corners Elementary

PrinCipal: Laureen H|Ckey

Director/Assistant Superintendent JOVO Bikic

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Continuing Goal: We will continue with the goal of strengthening our school community by fostering meaningful multi-age connections
and ensuring every student has supportive relationships with staff members. Our goal is to strengthen student attachment and
emotional well-being by integrating a trauma informed approach, supporting staff in building secure, meaningful relationships that
foster resilience, trust, and a sense of belonging for all learners.

B. Rationale

Building supportive relationships is essential, as research shows strong adult connections foster resilience, belonging, and academic
success. To address this, staff will intentionally identify students who do not yet have a trusted adult, pair them with staff members, and
implement strategies such as the “2 by 10” approach to strengthen connections. The Middle Years Development Instrument
administered in 2023 -24 indicated that our school showed a positive increase in student connection to adults, with the percentage of
students reporting two or more important adults at school rising from 65% in 2023-24 to 74% in 2024-25, a 9% improvement, and a
corresponding decrease in students reporting no important adults from 30% to 21%. In addition, the use of multi-age groupings will
further expand opportunities for students to build meaningful relationships with a broader range of adults in the school community.
/Andrea Chatwin’s work emphasizes how trauma and attachment experiences shape a child’s brain development, behaviour, and ability
to learn; by integrating her approaches, staff can build stronger, healing connections that foster self-regulation and long-term well-being.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

Staff have created 10 PEAK multi-age groups that meet two to three times per month to promote social interaction and collaborative
learning. Within these groups, socially isolated students are intentionally paired with a supportive staff member to strengthen
connections. Activities will include:

Relationship-building “get to know you” activities

Informal check-ins between students and staff members

Opportunities for students to collaborate with teachers and peers

Rotations through 10 stations designed to foster connection and build positive relationships across the school community.

PON~

In addition, staff will utilize Andrea Chatwin’s trauma informed approach including the ‘three step method’ to continue to build
attachment and connection with students.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

- Anecdotal evidence

- Comparing percentages from the school MDI (Middle Years Development Index) category of "Number of Important Adults at School"
with district average

- Checklist of the Two-by-Ten Strategy

- Student self-reflections

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:

_ _ 25-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agend kage ) Page 56




%@ SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

School: Whonnock Elementary

Principal: Megan Olynyk

Director/Assistant Superintendent Jovo Bikic

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Continuing Goal: We will continue with a numeracy goal this year. Our goal is to improve numeracy outcomes

for all learners. As we explore district and online resources, we will continue to implement numeracy activities

that can support growth in student achievement and numeracy skills. We hope that through these activites, we
will also develop a sense of belonging for all students, and improve overall school culture.

B. Rationale

Data from our 2024-25 Performance Standards indicates that 6% of students were assessed with emerging
numeracy skills, and 21% had skills in the developing range. Our staff have observed that many students
need support with numeracy tasks, including computational fluency, the ability to articulate problem-solving
strategies, and demonstrating general number sense. This year our school has the opportunity to pilot an
online math curriculum resource. We intend to explore this resource in depth, along with district numeracy
resources and assessment tools. We want to improve numeracy skills for students at all grade levels, and
build on our students’ high levels of academic self-concept and sense of belonging in our school. We hope to
move many of our students from emerging to developing, and from developing to proficient throughout the
school year.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

- Support a deeper understanding of Ministry of Education and Child Care proficiency scale and
progressions

- Use our assessment data to drive our instructional practice and to monitor student progress

- Pilot the Edwin math resource and share our experience

- Coordinate the Edwin resource with existing district resources and pedagogy (Spark, Coast Mountain,
Carole Fullerton)

- Dedicate numeracy time in all classrooms, with coordination where possible to maximize support for
students across classes and grade levels

- Explore and implement consistent resources, sharing experiences among staff

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

- Year over year numeracy year-end assessment data

- Teacher observations of student skill development in computational fluency, problem-solving strategies

- Familiarity and expertise with piloted online resource — providing helpful information to share our
experience

- Academic self-concept and sense of belonging scales on the Middle Years Developmental Inventory
meeting or exceeding district averages

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:

_ _ 25-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda kage - Page 57




%ﬁ SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Whonnock Elementary

Principal: Megan Olynyk

Director/Assistant Superintendent Jovo Bikic

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Continuing Goal: Our continued literacy goal is to improve reading outcomes for all learners. We will provide
targeted instruction to our emerging and developing readers, with a focus on decoding and comprehension.
We will promote school-wide literacy opportunities to build reading enjoyment for all students.

B. Rationale

Performance standards data from 2024-25 indicates that 8% of our students are emerging, and 29% are
developing in their reading skills. We will continue our focus on moving students from emerging to developing,
and from developing to proficient. We recognize the benefit of providing consistent literacy instruction and
targeted support. Our staff expressed the importance of using a common language when supporting students
with their reading strategies and skills. Many of our teachers enjoy collaborating to share resources, strategies
and assessment tools. We know the value and power of literacy activities to build school culture, as well as to
increase a sense of individual resilience and independence for our students. Positive literacy outcomes for
students are vital for their sense of accomplishment, a sense of belonging, and our overall school community.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

- Consistent resources available for staff (UFLI, K-3 Literacy Guide, Dandelion Launchers)

- Consistent instructional language used among staff to support literacy

- Protected literacy time in the mornings

- Celebrate literacy in our school with school-wide reading events (caught reading program with librarian to
start)

- Targeted support based on assessment information

- Use the new Kindergarten literacy screener to direct our pedagogy and our intervention planning

- Grouping students across classes to maximize support and to best meet learning needs

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

- Kindergarten literacy screener

- Decodable Early Primary Reading Assessment for primary students

- Intermediate Reading Assessment, Words Their Way, UFLI for intermediate students

- Middle Years Developmental Inventory data with respect to academic self-concept and sense of belonging
meeting or exceeding district averages

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson:




% SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

School: YENNADON ELEMENTARY

PrinCipal: Gary Lozinski

Director/Assistant Superintendent Jovo Bikic

A. GOAL (one goal per page)

New Goal: Enhance students’ ability to decode, read fluently and demonstrate comprehension of grade level text, aiming to show
an increase in proficiency by June 2026.

Enhance students’ ability to write with clarity and elaboration using the writing process, aiming to show an increase in proficiency
by June 2026.

B. Rationale

Upon reviewing previous literacy data, Yennadon staff appreciates the importance of literacy in supporting success across multiple learning domains for all learners.|

The ability to read, write, and understand language to acquire, construct, and communicate meaning is the foundation for all learning by:

o Building critical thinking and communication skills - These skills foster creativity, problem-solving, and the ability to make connections between concepts.

o Promoting confidence and independence - Confidence and self-assurance translates into greater participation, perseverance, and motivation at school and
beyond.

o Strengthening social and emotional cevelopment - Literacy supports emotional growth. Through stories and discussion, children learn compassion, perspective-
taking, and self-regulation.

o Embedding First People’s Principles of Learning through literature as a framework for learning — Connecting students in a meaningful way to indigenous culture
establishes an active road to learning about Truth and Reconciliation.

Yennadon's Middle Years Development Instrument (MDI) data highlights the continued need to support our students' engagement of activities that build self-
regulation skills. While it is recognized that strong literacy skills contribute to confidence, self-regulation, and overall learning readiness, there is also a need to
ensure that efforts and strategies are explored to enhance student learning readiness prior to engaging literacy to maximize success for students.

C. Action Plan (ist specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

. Self-Regulation Focus: Integrate self-regulation strategies as part of literacy instruction to enhance focus, persistence, and engagement.
. Community Engagement:
o Host information sessions for families on reading strategies, self-regulation, and learning readiness.
o Publish monthly newsletters with literacy tips and reading activities that support home-school connections.
. Staff Collaboration:
o  Dedicate staff meeting time for literacy-focused collaboration, sharing of best practices, classroom strategies, and assessment methods.
o Conduct monthly Literacy Team meetings and Literacy Working Group reviews of strategies, themes, and student progress.
o  Collaborate with district literacy helping teachers to refine instructional practices and assessments.
. Student Voice and Engagement:
o Implement student surveys to gather input/data on helpful reading strategies, bedtime/sleep routines, school connection, and optimism.
. Assessment and Resources:
o  Conduct baseline reviews using Kindergarten Learning Profile (KLP), BC Performance Standards (Gr. 1-7), and MDI.
o Engage in resource-sharing and implementation for Assessment, Literacy, Numeracy, Social Emotional Learning, and Self-Regulation.
o Use teacher reflection surveys monthly to gauge engagement in literacy practices and strategies for supporting struggling readers.
o Resource implementation collaboration through targeted budget

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

Kindergarten Learning Progressions, MDI, and BC Performance Standards results (baseline vs. year-end).
Increase in percentage of students moving from developing to proficient by 5% in targeted domains.
Teacher survey data indicating higher confidence and engagement in literacy instruction.

Student survey feedback showing improved engagement and self-regulation.

Documentation of staff collaboration (meeting notes, shared resources).

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:




%@ SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Garibaldi Secondary School

Principal: lan Liversidge Vice Principals: Wayne Chow and Karen Thompson

Director/Assistant Superintendent Ken Cober

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Goal 1: Social Emotional Learning, Resiliency and Personal Wellness. Staff will continue our work towards empowering school
community members to achieve their full potential as resilient, compassionate, and thoughtful citizens through resources,
mentorship, trauma-informed practice and positive relationships. We will support and emphasize the need for continuous growth
and learning as individuals and as a community.

B. Rationale

At Garibaldi Secondary, we recognize that fostering social-emotional learning, resiliency, and personal wellness is foundational to
both academic and personal success. Through staff observations and student voice, we have identified an increase in stress, social
disconnection and helplessness particularly in grades 8-10. In an increasingly complex world, students and staff alike benefit from
the ability to adapt to challenges, recover from setbacks, and maintain a sense of purpose and connection. By emphasizing trauma-
informed practices, mentorship, and positive relationships, we aim to create an environment where our school community feels
valued, supported, and equipped with the skills to navigate adversity with confidence and compassion. Teaching goal-setting,
growth mindsets and reflection skills, teachers will be able to see demonstrations of resiliency. Building resiliency not only
strengthens individual well-being but also cultivates a caring and inclusive culture that empowers all learners to reach their full
potential as thoughtful and engaged citizens.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

Building on last year’s work, we will continue to strengthen our focus on resiliency through the framework of the Approaches to
Learning (ATL) embedded in the International Baccalaureate program, which promote thoughtfulness, open-mindedness, positive
personal strength, and a growth mindset. These ATL skills will guide us in measuring and identifying opportunities to build resilience
across the school. Each department will implement at least one specific strategy designed to help students reframe mistakes as
valuable steps in the learning process, emphasizing perseverance and reflection over perfection. In addition, teachers will
intentionally integrate stories and examples of resiliency within their lessons to model adaptability, determination, and self-
awareness, reinforcing the message that challenges are an essential part of personal and academic growth.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

To measure progress toward our school goal of fostering social-emotional learning, resiliency, and personal wellness, teachers will
intentionally design at least one structured learning-from-failure opportunity per term in each course. These activities will provide
students with the chance to try, fail, reflect, and try again, emphasizing growth over grades.

Reflection opportunities such as test or lab corrections, “Failure Résumé” exercises, and post-assignment reflections will be collected
as evidence of student learning and growth. Lessons and discussions will intentionally include examples of resiliency, both historical
and contemporary, to help students make personal connections and reframe failure as a valuable part of learning.

Measures of Progress: Student reflections demonstrate increased metacognition, perseverance, and awareness of personal growth.
Teachers observe greater student engagement and persistence during retry or reflection activities. School-wide survey or reflection
rubric data indicate improved attitudes toward learning from challenges. Documentation (samples of reflections, retry assignments,
or collaborative quiz data) collected twice per year shows increased participation in reflective and retry learning opportunities.

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson:

lan Liversidge Teresa Downs




\h%;-\} SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

) Garibaldi Sec School
School:

Principal: lan Liversidge Vice Principal Wayne Chow, Karen Thompson

Director/Assistant Superintendent Ken Cober

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Goal 2 : Garibaldi Secondary will develop improved student achievement in literacy assessment as we build a strong, inclusive team that values all
community members and improve opportunities to communicate with and adapt for everyone's strengths and challenges.

B. Rationale

We are working to improve our support of literacy across all subjects, a better understanding in Universal Design for Learning (UDL), and cultural
bias. This is a literary based focus of our longitudinal goals, supporting the diversity of our learners. We have worked to recognize the increasing
diversity of our learning within the Middle Years Program framework, and the strength generated by common assessment, shared and common
unit preparation. This year, we want to build on that by being more adaptive. We will continue talking, sharing and practicing inclusive strategies
while implementing these strategies into common units. Additionally, we have developed a targeted literacy program focused on students in Grade
9 with the goal to practice basic skills and build literacy confidence that could be applied to all subject areas.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

Some school level actions include using professional develoment and collaboration time to work on trauma informed practices, working through
literacy materials to focus on skills like reading fluency, word recognition and context clues and defining inclusion — linking to the trainer initiates.
Literary choices that reflect all members of our community with leveled accessible bins for literacy and numeracy circulating during tutorial. In-
house gifted program. Data collected from the Grade 10 Literacy assessment can be collected and compared. Classroom work on Approaches to
Learning (ATL) - social awareness - followed by reflection. Growth days and staff meetings where there is targeted discussion time to look at what is
happening in classrooms and where we can continue to build and practice resources provided Including a review of the potential cultural biases in
significant summative evaluation; all reviewed with the UDL perspective.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

1. School Climate and Belonging (Perceptual Evidence)

e Annual student, staff, and family surveys measuring feelings of inclusion, belonging, and being valued within the school community. Example
measure: “I feel that my strengths are recognized at school” or “I have opportunities to contribute to my school community.” Focus group or
student voice sessions once per semester to gather qualitative evidence of whether students feel heard, respected, and supported. Increased
participation in clubs, leadership programs, cultural events, and community initiatives that represent diverse groups within the school.

2. Communication and Collaboration (Practice-Based Evidence): Tracking teacher collaboration during professional development and department
time — documenting shared strategies for inclusion and communication across learning needs. Evidence from classroom practice: Use of
differentiated instruction or UDL strategies. Inclusion of diverse texts, voices, and literacy activities across departments. Student work that
demonstrates effective communication, collaboration, and respect for multiple perspectives. Parent and family engagement data: attendance or
participation in school events, family conferences, and community outreach opportunities.

3. Literacy and Contribution (Learning Evidence): Student literacy data (writing samples, reading comprehension, oral communication tasks)
showing growth across diverse learners. Student reflections or self-assessments highlighting their understanding of how literacy connects to being a
contributing member of the community. Cross-curricular projects or presentations where students communicate ideas, collaboration, and
demonstrate their ability to adapt and contribute meaningfully.

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:




%@ SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

School: Garibaldi Secondary

. lan Liversidge VP Wayne Chow, Karen Thompson
Principal:

Director/Assistant Superintendent Ken Cober

A. Goal 3 (one goal per page)

Garibaldi Secondary will continue to deepen the collective understanding of anti-racism pedagogy within the school
setting and meaningfully engage in learning opportunities that foster understanding of ways of knowing and being,
the histories, and cultures of First Nations, Inuit, and Metis as outlined in the 9th Professional Standard for BC
Educators. We will also continue to explore culturally responsive practices and highlight the diversity that makes up
the school community. This goal aligns with the K-12 Anti-Racism Action Plan framework of removing barriers and
collaborative change.

B. Rationale

Garibaldi Secondary continues to be committed to Truth and Reconciliation and to increasing awareness of student
agency and voice for all. As we continue this effort in the 2025/2026 growth planning day, the Garibaldi learning
community’s goal is to identify where these spaces currently exist and how cultural literacy is evolving within the
school community. Staff has identified an equitable classroom as a fair and inclusive space where everyone is
respected, supported, and treated equally. Students’ needs are met without stigma, and resources like flexible
seating, food, and learning tools are available to all. Everyone’s voice and identity is valued, and learning happens
in multiple ways so every student can succeed.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

First Peoples Principles of Learning will be shared regularly in staff meetings, newsletters, and classroom graphics,
linking to curriculum and practice. Engagement of the Indigenous education support worker in classrooms focusing
on increasing Indigenous voice. Affinity spaces will continue to be offered to Black, Indigenous, and People of
Colour (BIPOC) students as a protected space for dialogue and mentorship. Cultural awareness and activities that
embrace and foster diversity will continue to be student-centered. Students will continue their development of the
Core Competencies/Approaches to Learning as outlined in the K-12 Anti-Racism Action Plan and Teachers' Guide.
Departments will continue to embed cultural understanding into unit plans and provide access points for learning. A
staff subcommittee focused on equity and inclusion will share opportunities to highlight the diversity within the
school community, and a Student Voice committee on equity will support this initative to contribute to the learning
within the school community.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

Year-over-year data collections of the number of students selecting courses with Indigenous curricular foundation.
Additional data will be collected from both counselling and our anti-racism committee to note participation levels in
various events. We will also quantify the diversity of culturally, inclusive events, such as food services, celebratory
weeks or months bulletin boards identifying growth in this area and work towards increasing Indigenous voice in
schoolwide celebrations/cultural activities.

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:




é’A\ SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

School District 42 ™

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Maple Ridge Secondary School

. Grant Frend
Principal:

Director/Assistant Superintendent Ken Cober

A. Goal (one goal per page)

New Goal: to decrease the percentage of students scoring a 1 on the Grade 10 Numeracy Assessment (2025 10%, 2024 11%, 2023 13%) and to
reduce the percentage of students receiving a 2 (2025 40%, 2024 38%, 2023 48%) while increasing the number of students achieving a 3 or
higher.

B. Rationale

Over the past two years, our school data indicate that Grade 10 students consistently perform lower on numeracy assessments than on literacy
assessments. In response to this data we are actioning school-wide support in developing numeracy skills across all subject areas, not solely within
mathematics courses. Improving numeracy outcomes will strengthen students’ problem-solving abilities, reasoning, and confidence in applying
quantitative skills across disciplines.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

Cross-Curricular Numeracy Integration

Department heads will facilitate a collaborative process within their departments to develop lessons that explicitly support numeracy skill
development for Grade 10 students across subject areas (e.g., data interpretation in Science, proportional reasoning in Applied Design, or budgeting in
(Career Education).

Mathematics Department Focus
Math 10 teachers will:

e  Unpack the Numeracy 10 assessment structure and scoring rubrics with their students.
e  [ead practice numeracy assessments (“practice writes”) to build familiarity and confidence.
e Share exemplar student work and engage in calibration exercises to ensure consistent expectations.

Professional Collaboration and Capacity Building:
Staff meetings and department sessions will include time for teachers to share strategies, resources, and best practices related to numeracy instruction.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

IPrimary Data: Provincial Numeracy 10 Assessment results (comparison of Levels 1, 2, 3, and 4 year over year).

Supporting Data:

e  Student work samples and formative numeracy assessments.
e Department feedback on numeracy-focused lessons.
e  Student self-reflections on numeracy confidence and skill development.

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson:




%} SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Pitt Meadows Secondary School

Colin Sharpe

Principal:

Director/Assistant Superintendent Ken Cober

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Numeracy: A new goal for Pitt Meadows Secondary (PMSS). Students will develop and apply numeracy skills to
confidently interpret, analyze, and communicate quantitative information in everyday life — from independent decisions to
global issues.

B. Rationale

A schoolwide goal focused on numeracy aims to strengthen students’ ability to apply mathematical thinking across all
subject areas and in real-world contexts. In reviewing historical data, most students at PMSS score a 1 or a 2 on the
Numercy assessment (2021 — 75%, 2022 — 56%, 2023 — 76%, 2024 — 65%). Numeracy is not just about peforming
calculations — its about interpreting data, recognizing patterns, solving problems, applying skills to real life situations and
making confident and informed decisions. By embedding numeracy cross-curricularly into daily learning and
emphasizing its relevance beyond math class, we will help students develop confidence and competence in using
numbers to reason, analyze, and communicate effectively. This focus supports improved academic achievement, critical
thinking, and lifelong skills essential for success in post-secondary pathways and everyday life. Through our collective
efforts, we hope to move more of our students into the 3 range on the Provincial Numeracy Assessment.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

o Assessment Data: Analyze provincial assessments results and classroom assessments to target key skill areas.

¢ Professional Learning for Staff: Development of numeracy startegies and cross-curricular integration.

e Instructional Strategies: Incorporate real-world numeracy applications across all subject areas. Use visual models,
manipulatives,and digital tools to deepen conceptual understanding.

o Student Support: Implement targeted numeracy interventions and small-group instruction.

o Assessment Preparation: Host in-class preparation sessions related to structure and navigation of Provincial
Numeracy Assessment, as well as hold Flex sessions and send home communication on preparation.

o Offer collaborative planning sessions for teachers to embed numeracy outcomes in all subjects.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

Success will be measured through a combination of quantitative and qualitative data sources. Key indicators will include
growth in student achievement on the Provincial Numeracy Assessment, as well as improved performance on school
based assessments and numeracy tasks across subject areas. Teachers will collect formative assessment data to track
student progress in reasoning, problem-solving, and application of numeracy skills. Classroom walkthroughs and
observations will provide evidence of numeracy-rich instruction and student engagement. Student work samples and
portfolios will demonstrate increased proficiency and confidence in mathematical thinking. Student surveying in fall,
repeated in June to see changes.

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:




é:’)ﬁtﬁ >X SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Pitt Meadows Secondary School

Principal: Colin Sharpe

Director/Assistant Superintendent Ken Cober

A. Goal (one goal per page)

EQUITY: A continuing goal for Pitt Meadows Secondary (PMSS). PMSS will continue to improve learning
outcomes and levels of safety, care and belonging for every learner by continuing to develop an inclusive,
culturally responsive school across all curricular areas, and widening our collective lens to recognize,
embrace, and celebrate the numerous and diverse cultures within our school.

B. Rationale

Schools must be places where every learner feels seen, valued, and empowered to thrive. By committing to
inclusive and culturally responsive practices across all curricular areas, we not only enhance academic
achievement but also foster environments of safety, care, and belonging. At PMSS, at the start of the 2025-
2026 school year, the student population is 986 district students and 79 international students. We have 79
students identified as having Indigenous ancestry, and 256 students with designations. This goal reflects our
belief that recognizing, embracing, and celebrating the rich cultural identities within our school community is
essential to nurturing well-rounded, empathetic, and resilient learners. When students feel respected and
represented, they engage more deeply, learn more effectively, and contribute more meaningfully to their
communities.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

¢ Encourage staff to engage in ongoing opportunities to ensure inclusive practices, cultural responsiveness,
anti-racism, and trauma-informed education. We will incorporate a section to review this every other staff
meeting.

¢ Teachers will identify gaps in cultural representation and inclusive pedagogy, integrating diverse
perspectives into lesson plans and learning resources.

e Student Voice and other initiatives to advise and elevate student perspectives.

¢ Create inclusive visual environments (e.g., multilingual signage, diverse artwork, affirming messages).

¢ Implement restorative practices to build relationships and resolve conflict in culturally respectful ways.

e Engage in regular reflection and reporting to celebrate successes and adjust strategies.

¢ Encourage staff to branch out beyond their department to collaborate and build success.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

Engagement & Instructional Quality: student attendance and absenteeism rates, student engagement (interest
in learning, perceived relevance) and classroom observation (instructional quality, differentiation)

Care & Belonging Indicators: reports of incidents (bullying, physical altercations), student perception of safety,
participation in extracurriculars, referrals to school-based team, quality of staff-student relations (trust,
mentorship)

Equity Metrics: feedback loops via Student Voice, Black Indigenous People of Colour (BIPOC) Forum, student
leadership, student learning survey

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:




é;) @ SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025/26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

school: Samuel Robertson Technical Secondary

Principal: Ken Elphick

Director/Assistant Superintendent: Ken Cober

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Samuel Robertson Technical Secondary (SRT) aims to increase the percentage of students achieving Proficient or
Extending on the Grade 10 Numeracy Assessment from 31% to 35%. Targeted supports will be directed toward
Developing and Emerging learners, who currently make up 59% of SRT’s student population. This target represents
a new school-wide goals for SRT.

B. Rationale

While SRT has shown steady improvement since 2021, results remain below provincial averages. In 2025, 31% of
SRT students achieved Proficient with no Extending results, compared to provincial averages of 33%

Proficient and 9% Extending. Continued attention to instructional strategies and student confidence in numeracy is
required to close this gap.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

SRT staff will strengthen numeracy across the curriculum through collaborative, cross-curricular projects developed
during collaboration and professional development days. The math department will implement formative assessment
practices to provide timely feedback, support engagement, and reduce frustration by helping students recognize their
progress. A school-wide initiative will promote a growth mindset in numeracy by normalizing struggle, celebrating
progress, and embedding mathematical thinking in all subjects. Inquiry-based tasks connecting numeracy to authentic
contexts (e.g., sustainability data, sports analytics, construction design) will be emphasized, and weekly department time
will be used to share strategies and review exemplars from past assessments.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

Progress will be measured through Grade 10 Numeracy Assessment results, with a target increase from 31% to 35%
Proficient or Extending. Additional evidence will include:

Increased participation in numeracy-focused professional learning and collaboration sessions.

Teacher feedback indicating improved student engagement and confidence in numeracy.

Student reflections demonstrating growth in problem-solving and reasoning skills.

Departmental tracking of formative assessment data showing more students progressing

from Developing to Proficient.

e Atleast 75% of Grade 10 students participating in a numeracy-related cross-curricular or applied learning activity.

Principal: Superintendent; Board Chairperson: Date:

_ _ 25-12-03 Public Board Meeting AgendiB@kage - Page 66




2

smo@i SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025/26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

school: Samuel Robertson Technical Secondary

Principal: Ken Elphick

Director/Assistant Superintendent: Ken Cober

A. Goal (one goal per page)

New goal: Enhance post-secondary and career readiness for all students by providing authentic, hands-on learning,
mentorship opportunities, and explicit skill-building that connect classroom learning to future pathways.

B. Rationale

Student and staff data highlight a need to strengthen the connection between classroom learning and future
pathways. Although 70-83% of students plan to pursue post-secondary education or employment (Student Learning
Survey), fewer than half feel confident that SRT is preparing them for those transitions. Furthermore, an internal
survey of Grade 11 and 12 students following May’s SD42 Board of Education visit revealed that only 17% believe
teachers regularly connect subjects to careers. Staff emphasize the importance of authentic exposure, mentorship,
and project-based learning to make instruction more relevant and engaging. Embedding career-connected learning
across disciplines will help students find purpose in their education, develop transferable skills, and feel more
prepared for life beyond graduation.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

o Career Awareness & Access: Expand student exposure to career and post-secondary opportunities, including
introducing all Grade 10 students to the annual PNE Career Fair.

e Classroom Connections: Support departments in integrating career-connected learning within existing lessons
and projects, with collaboration time during late starts and professional development days.

o Post-Secondary Literacy: Strengthen career and financial literacy in Career Life Education (CLE), Career Life
Connections (CLS, and Flex blocks to ensure all students gain practical understanding of planning, costs, and
transitions.

e Communication & Reflection: Continue using Capstone and reflection activities for students to demonstrate
awareness of pathways and transferable skills. Reintroduce SRT’s Interview Fair and increase access to career
and financial literacy speakers.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

Student satisfaction with school career preparation increases by 20% (from 21% to 41% by 2026).

Percentage of students reporting teachers connect subjects to careers rises from 17% to 30%.

Over 75% of Grade 10 students attend the annual PNE Career Fair, with strong participation in the volunteer fair.
Capstone and reflection activities show greater awareness of pathways and transferable skills.

Principal: Superintendent; Board Chairperson: Date:

_ _ e Meeting Agend kage - Page i




%ﬁ SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

THOMAS HANEY SECONDARY SCHOOL
DARREN ROWELL

School:

Principal:

Director/Assistant Superintendent KEN COBER

A. Goal (one goal per page)

New Goal - To foster a culture of innovation and experiential learning across all subject areas, empowering students to develop
future-ready skills - including critical thinking, collaboration, and creative problem-solving - through hands-on, real-world
challenges; and to deepen students’ ability to use artificial intelligence tools responsibly, ethically, and effectively as part of their
self-directed learning journey.

B. Rationale

'We will continue to foster a culture of innovation through real-world, hands-on, and cross-curricular learning experiences that ignite
curiosity and creativity. From robotics and culinary arts to outdoor learning, media design, and global travel, students will engage in
challenges that connect knowledge to action, building the adaptability, collaboration, and problem-solving skills essential for a rapidly
changing world. At Thomas Haney, where innovation and experiential learning are central to our identity, artificial intelligence (AI)
offers students new ways to direct their own learning - to explore ideas, solve problems, and create in ways that extend our self-
directed model into the future. Many students are already using Al tools, yet often without critical understanding, risking issues such
as plagiarism, misinformation, and overreliance. By developing digital and Al literacy, students will learn to think critically, question
sources, and apply Al tools ethically in their projects, research, and creative pursuits. Key Student Learning Survey Data from 2024-
25: (1) Opportunities to learn in places outside of school? (Most/All the time) 62% Gr. 10s / 57% Gr. 12s (2) At school, are you
taught to take ownership or control of your learning (for example, marking your own work, making decisions about what you want to
istudy)? (Most/All the time) 62% Gr. 10s / 61% Gr. 12s (3) At school, are you learning creative ways to think of new ideas? (Most/All
the time) 37% Gr. 10s / 40% Gr. 12s (4) At school, are you learning to be a critical thinker? (Most/All the time) 43% Gr. 10s / 58%
Gr. 12s

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

Thomas Haney Secondary (THSS) will enhance digital literacy through targeted initiatives led by an Al Planning Team that supports
staff and students in the ethical and creative use of Al across subjects. Digital literacy workshops on evaluating sources, identifying
bias, and authentic Al use will be offered to teachers, while an Al and Mental Health session for grade 8/9 students will promote
balance and online well-being. Student voice groups will provide ongoing feedback to ensure our approach reflects both data and lived
experience within our innovative, self-directed learning culture. THSS will continue to support and promote cross-curricular, hands-on
learning that connects classroom knowledge to real-world challenges through projects in areas such as robotics, culinary arts, media
arts, and environmental sustainability. Building on our open school model, teachers will collaborate to design inquiry-based and
project-based experiences supported by field trips, community partnerships, and outdoor learning spaces like the orchard and
greenhouse.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

Success will be measured through a combination of student, staff, and program data that reflects growth in innovation, digital literacy,
and experiential learning. We will monitor Student Learning Survey data - particularly items related to critical thinking, learning
opportunities outside of school, creativity, collaboration, and ownership of learning. Student focus groups and anecdotal feedback will
provide insight into confidence and ethical awareness in Al use. Overall, results indicate that as students progress through THSS’s
self-directed model, they become more confident, collaborative, and capable of creative and critical thought.

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:




%\Q SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

THOMAS HANEY SECONDARY SCHOOL
DARREN ROWELL

School:

Principal:

Director/Assistant Superintendent KEN COBER

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Continuing goal: To continue to build and foster a positive learning community where students are invested and actively engaged in
all aspects of school life and to ensure a school community grounded in diversity, equity, and inclusion.

B. Rationale

Learning thrives in an environment where students feel connected, safe, and valued. When students experience genuine belonging—
through relationships with peers, staff, and the wider school community—they are more engaged, motivated, and open to learning.
Building a strong culture of connection at Haney supports mental wellbeing, fosters intrinsic purpose, and encourages both students
and staff to invest in our shared success. Data from 2024-25 Student Learning Survey: Do you feel welcome at your

school? (Most/All the time) 78% Gr. 10s / 84% Gr. 12s. Is school a place where you feel you belong? (Most/All the time) 53% Gr.
10s / 63% Gr. 12s. At your school, how many adults do you feel care about you? (3 or more adults) 50% Gr. 10s / 67% Gr. 12s. At
school, have you experienced discrimination on the basis of your sexual orientation or gender identity? (Never/Almost never) 87% Gr.
10s / 86% Gr. 12s

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

» Ensure all events, opportunities, and announcements are shared daily during teacher advisory (TA).

» Recognize student achievements, celebrate cultural events, and promote school-wide activities on the school website and in social
media posts.

» Hold school-wide events that bring the community together and offer a broad range of student clubs and intramural sports, ensuring
representation across interests (arts, culture, recreation, technology, leadership).

» Invite students to use great halls and other common areas for collaboration, study, and socialization. Staff supervise and encourage
positive use of these spaces.

* Reinforce the purpose of TA as a key relationship-building and mentoring structure. Provide staff with resources to guide
connection-building conversations and activities.

» Staff involved in cultural learning opportunities such as the Legacy Drum Project.

» Invite Indigenous speakers, artists, and performers to share their lived experiences, teachings, and cultural knowledge with students,
providing authentic opportunities to learn about and appreciate Indigenous histories, traditions, and perspectives.

» Organize staff activities throughout the year to strengthen relationships, build trust, and foster a sense of belonging among all staff
members. Increased connection and collaboration among staff will enhance school culture and positively impact how we support and
engage with students.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

'We will continue to monitor our student involvement and attendance in leadership, clubs, and teams throughout the year. We will
continue to use the results from the Student Learning Survey (grades 10 and 12) and the Youth Development Instrument (Grade 11) to
shape our thinking and planning.

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:




%ﬁ SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

THOMAS HANEY SECONDARY SCHOOL
DARREN ROWELL

School:

Principal:

Director/Assistant Superintendent KEN COBER

A. Goal (one goal per page)

INew goal: To foster confidence and increase the numeracy skills in our students across all grades while developing increased
resiliency working in the self-directed learning style at Thomas Haney Secondary (THSS). We will seek to expand students’
abilities to access resources, seek out a variety of learning supports, and foster a growing sense of confidence and positivity.

B. Rationale

Foundational numeracy skills are essential for student success—not only in academic disciplines, but across all areas of learning
and in life. While THSS students consistently perform well in communication and reading, we recognize the need to further
support numeracy skills and confidence, especially in earlier grades. As we continue to support numeracy at THSS, it is
essential that we celebrate student’s learning, building confidence and fostering a positive mindset. The following data will be
used to guide our growth.

2024-25 Student Learning Survey: [ continue to get better at math (apply formulas, interpret data, solve problems). Student
Response - Agree - Gr. 10s 38% / Gr. 12s 27% and Strongly Agree - Gr. 10s 14% / Gr. 12s 13%.

Numeracy 10 Assessment Data: THSS compared to district average - Composite Score - grade 10s 3.3 (District Average 3.5)
and grade 12s 3.2 (District Average 3.3)

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

/As we continue to personalize learning at THSS, it's vital that all students are equipped with strong core skills to independently
access, evaluate, and apply numeracy information. Enhancing these skills in real-world, interdisciplinary, and self-paced
contexts ensures that our learners can thrive both inside and beyond the classroom.

-We will continue to offer math clubs after school for students to spend additional time for their learning.

-Students will also be able to seek support from all math teachers during their open blocks in the Math Great Hall, enabling
them to utilize past connections with staff to continue to support their learning and develop their confidence.

-Seek to offer Numeracy 10 Assessment review sessions, providing opportunities for practice and creating confidence leading
up to the assessment.

-Continue to build our online website with practical lessons, reviews, and opportunities to refine and reinforce their skills.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

Teachers will continue to remind students of their growth throughout the year, as many students significantly expand their skills
and understanding each month, as they work through their course material. Student Learning Survey data will be monitored -
particularly items related to critical thinking and student perception of their numeracy skills — including this question from the
'We will monitor a cohort of students, reviewing their Foundation Skills Assessment (FSA) scores in elementary school and then
track their progress on Numeracy 10 to monitor their progress. Success will continue to be measured and reviewed through our
Numeracy 10 results as we seek to continue to improve our overall scores, which have an average composite score of 2.4 over
the past 5 years.

Principal: Superintendent: Board Chairperson: Date:

_ _ 025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agend@iBckage - Page 70




q%;) {\msD SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025/26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Westview Secondarv School

Principal: Cathryn Blanco

Director/Assistant Superintendent: Kenneth Cober

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Literacy (new goal)
Increase the number of students earning a proficient on their Graduation Literacy Assessments at both Grade 10
and 12 to at least 60% in the next two years.

B. Rationale

Literacy results show a downward trend in both the Graduation Literacy Assessment 10 and Graduation
Literacy Assessment 12. Staff identified literacy as a concern with specific mention of:

e Students struggling with reading and writing across subject areas

¢ A need for new strategies to engage students in reading and writing

o A desire to embed literacy strategies in all subject areas not just English

The number of students achieving at the Proficient level in Grade 12 has decreased 60.47% in 2022 to 57.72%
in 2025. The number of students achieving at the Proficient level in Grade 10 has decreased from 63.36% in
2022 to 56.94% in 2025.

Additionally, there is a desire to apply an equity lens to literacy instruction — ensuring that texts, tasks and
assessments are accessible to all learners, including those with Individualized Education Plans (IEPs) and
English Language Leaners (ELL) support. Strengthening literacy will support students in all subject area,
enhance their ability to demonstrate core competencies and better prepare them for life beyond Grade 12.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

Embed reading and writing strategies in all curricular areas
Facilitate department-based collaboration to identify authentic reading and writing tasks tied to curricular
competencies

o Staff sessions to deepen their understanding of Literacy 10 and 12 assessment criteria tasks connected to
curricular competencies: access support from district secondary helping teacher

e Use Al tools (e.g. text simplification, feedback generators) to support Universal Design for Learning and IEP
adaptations/modifications
Offer Literacy Assessment prep session through the library

¢ Promote inclusive, high interest reading materials that reflect student identities and support accessibility;
review classroom texts and materials to ensure accessibility and cultural relevance

e Black, Indigenous, and people of colour (BIPOC) student voice around spending $2,000 approved by board in
current year budget to selection of materials that reflect their identities

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

Graduation Literacy Assessments 10 and 12

Track student engagement and participation in assessment prep sessions
Collect teacher feedback

Student and parent voice on their experiences with reading and writing




2

Sch(,@; SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025/26

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: Westview Secondary School

Principal: Cathryn Blanco

Director/Assistant Superintendent: Kenneth Cober

A. Goal (one goal per page)

Equity and Anti-Racism: To foster a school community at Westview where all students, staff and families feel a deep
sense of belonging, value and safety — socially, emotionally, culturally and academically — by advancing equity, inclusion
and anti-racism initiatives across the school.

B. Rationale

Westview Secondary serves a diverse community of learners, staff, and families. Survey data in 2023 and 2024 (2025
has yet to be received) show improvements in students’ sense of safety: 15% of students reported a low sense of safety
in 2024 compared to 26% in 2023, while 52% reported a high sense of safety in 2024 compared to 48% in 2023.
Despite this progress, ongoing feedback indicates the need for deeper work in fostering positive peer culture, supporting
BIPOC students, supporting LGBTQIA2S+ students, addressing the use of slurs, and ensuring that all students and staff
feel they have valued place and purpose at Westview.

The Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows School District vision is for “every individual to feel valued and for all learners to reach
their potential”. Achieving this requires physical, emotional, cultural, and identity safety. Equity and anti-racism are
critical to creating learning environments where students and staff can feel brave, supported and thrive.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

e Strengthen BIPOC student group to advise on school practices and select culturally relevant learning resources
using the $2,000 equity grant approved by the board

e Support student leadership groups (Athletic Leadership, Leadership, Wildcat Council, Pride, Marketing) to host

events promoting kindness, diversity and peer community

Encourage staff participating in late-start anti-racism professional learning

Continue and expand teacher-led anti-racism working group

Offer professional learning and resources on Universal Design for Learning (UDL)

Continue administrative focus on keeping bathrooms safe and inclusive spaces for all students

Enhance Grade 8 orientation and transition activities to build early connection

Embed equity and anti-racism conversations in advisory classes

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

Student Learning Survey results

Student Voice feedback from BIPOC group

Staff reflections

Track office referrals for racial and anti-LGBTQIA2S+ slurs




é”%\; SCHOOL GROWTH PLAN SUMMARY FOR 2025-26

School District 42

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Learning Today, Leading Tomorrow

School: School District 42 Alternate Secondary (Connex Program)

. Steve Wiebe
Principal:

Director/Assistant Superintendent Ken Cober

o Goal (one goal per page)

New Goal: Improve student literacy across the curriculum using the 2024-2025 Literacy 12 Assessment results as a
guide for building upon students’ strengths and addressing areas of growth. Alongside developing literacy skills, we
implement strategies to address assessment anxiety.

B. Rationale

The 2024/2025 Literacy 12 Assessment shows 50% of students are emerging or developing. We would like to shift the
number of students in the proficient range (currently 35%) to 40% in 2025-2026. Analysis of our 2024/2025 Literacy
Assessment 12 results shows analytical reading and personal response as areas of strength, and written stamina,
organization for sustained responses, comprehension stamina for longer texts, and assessment readiness as areas for
growth. The data reflects diverse literacy skills and complex life circumstances, informing our approach to meeting
students’ learning needs. We will use structured learning maps as feedback to assess student assignments and to help
students assess and improve upon the quality of their own assignments (metacognition), allowing both teachers and
students to track progression toward improved literacy skills across-contexts, including literature, text-books, audio
production/song writing, oral conversation, visual media, interpretation of manuals and/or schematics, and Artificial
Intelligence (Al) literacy.

C. Action Plan (list specific actions, school level and district level resources or structures used)

Fostering student reflection on their assignments through visual, structured feedback from their teachers through learning
map rubrics will build confidence with test taking and reduce assessment anxiety. In addition, we will employ relaxation
and breathing strategies with our students to support further reduction in anxiety with regard to test taking and
assessments readiness. These two strategies will support our goal of improving student literacy across the curriculum.

Professional development to increase our knowledge of Artificial Intelligence with agencies like EthosLab, so that we can
ethically educate our students on Al literacy, useage, and engagement. Strengthening collaboration with district helping
teachers, integrating student laptop use, and developing cohesive wrap-around supports will enhance our ability to meet
student needs. Continued professional learning is required to address diverse literacy gaps and evolving student
demographics, alongside workshops on breath work, meditation, and visualization.

D. Evidence / Data (how will you measure success?)

We will compare Literacy 12 Assessment Data from the 2024—-2025 year with Literacy 12 Assessment Data from this
year (2025-2026). We will know we are successful with our strateiges if we see an increase in the number of students
performing in the proficient range on the 2025/2026 Literacy 12 Assessment. Success will also be measured day to day
with the assessment of key student assignments and progression up at least one or more levels of the learning map
scale (4 point scale) across one or more areas of literacy competency.

Principal: Superintendent; Board Chairperson: Date:




’) Public Board Meeting

/\ December 3, 2025

School District 42 Decision Memo
Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows

Item 5

From: Richard Rennie, Secretary Treasurer

Topic: Preliminary Budget Process and Consultation Timeline for 2026/27

BACKGROUND

In accordance with the School Act, school districts in the province must approve a balanced
budget and submit it to the Ministry of Education and Child Care by June 30, 2026.

School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge - Pitt Meadows) will finalize base budget estimates for
2026/27 following the announcement of the 2026/27 Operating Grant by the Ministry of
Education and Child Care, expected on or before March 15, 2026.

The Preliminary Budget Process and Consultation Timeline for 2026/27 (Attachment)
outlines a structured and transparent approach to budget development. The process includes
meetings and engagement opportunities to share financial information, gather input from
partner groups and the public, and collaboratively explore budget balancing options. The
process supports informed decision-making and reflects feedback received on the 2025/26
preliminary budget process.

Once approved, this information will be posted on the school district website at
https://www.sd42.ca/board-of-education/budget-process/.

In addition to the budget meetings involving the Board outlined in the attachment, staff will
engage in the following consultation and information sessions:

e December 8, 2025 - Preliminary consultation with partner groups on budget priorities
e February 26, 2026 - Consultation with the District Leadership Team on budget priorities

e April 15, 2026 - Presentation of the proposed 2026/27 preliminary budget to the
District Leadership Team prior to public release

e April 15, 2026 - Presentation of the proposed 2026/27 preliminary budget to employee
partner groups prior to public release

e April 20, 2026 - Meeting with employee partner groups to address clarification
questions prior to partner group input meeting with the Board

RECOMMENDATION

THAT the Board approve the Preliminary Budget Process and Consultation Timeline
for 2026 /27 as presented.

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 74


https://www.sd42.ca/board-of-education/budget-process/

ATTACHMENT

Preliminary Budget Process and Consultation Timeline for 2026/27

Public Board Meeting
Wednesday, June 18, 2025

Presentation and approval of 5-year capital plan for major capital
projects for 2026/27

Public Board Meeting
Wednesday, September 17, 2025

Presentation and approval of 5-year capital plan for minor capital
projects for 2026/27

Public Board Meeting
Wednesday, December 3, 2025

Presentation and approval of the proposed budget process and
consultation timeline for the 2026/27 preliminary budget

Online Public Budget Survey Part 1
Thursday, January 29 to
Wednesday, February 18, 2026

Consultation with the public on budget priorities through an online
budget survey

Public Board Meeting
Wednesday, February 11, 2026

Presentation and approval of the 2025/26 amended annual budget
(which supports establishment of the 2026/27 base budget)

Public Board Meeting
Wednesday, February 11, 2026

Presentation of 3-year projected enrolments for 2026/27

Indigenous Education Council (IEC)
Budget Consultation

Monday, February 23, 2026

Presentation of the 2026/27 draft preliminary budget estimates

Co-construction of spending plans for targeted Indigenous
Education funds

Consultation on budget priorities for non-targeted funds

Board Finance Committee of the
Whole Meeting with Partner Groups
and Student Voice

Wednesday, February 25, 2026

Presentation of the 2026/27 draft preliminary budget estimates
Consultation with partner groups on budget priorities
Consultation with students on budget priorities

Board Finance Committee of the
Whole Meeting with Partner Groups

Wednesday, April 1, 2026

Presentation of the updated 2026/27 draft preliminary budget estimates
Presentation of the public budget survey part 1 results

Public Board Meeting
Wednesday, April 15, 2026

Presentation of the proposed 2026/27 preliminary budget (1% reading),
including public budget survey part 1 results

Online Public Budget Survey Part 2
Thursday, April 16 to
Wednesday, April 22, 2026

Public input on the proposed 2026/27 preliminary budget through an
online budget survey

Indigenous Education Council
Meeting

Wednesday, April 22, 2026 (morning)

IEC approval of the proposed 2026/27 spending plans for targeted
funds

IEC input on the proposed 2026/27 preliminary budget non-targeted
funds

Board Finance Committee of the
Whole with Partner Groups

Wednesday, April 22, 2026 (afternoon)

Partner Group input on the proposed 2026/27 preliminary budget

Board Finance Committee of the
Whole with Public

Wednesday, April 22, 2026 (evening)

Public input on the proposed 2026/27 preliminary budget

Public Board Meeting
Wednesday, April 29, 2026

Receipt of IEC-approved 2026/27 spending plans for targeted
Indigenous Education funds

Presentation of the Public Engagement Summary

Adoption of the 2026/27 preliminary budget and annual budget bylaw
(following 2™ and 3™ readings at this meeting)

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 75




é’,) Public Board Meeting

/\ December 3, 2025

School District 42 Decision Memo
Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows

Item 6

From: Finance Committee of the Whole
Richard Rennie, Secretary Treasurer
Iris Mo, Assistant Secretary Treasurer

Topic: First Quarter Financial Statements for 2025/26

BACKGROUND

On April 30, 2025, the Board approved the 2025/26 preliminary budget bylaw for the
operating, special purpose, and capital funds. Subsequently, the Board has approved the
following amended budget changes for 2025/26 which have been incorporated into the
2025/26 first quarter financial statements:

e Appropriation of the 2024/25 operating surplus for inclusion in the 2025/26 amended
budget, through the Board’s approval of the 2024/25 audited financial statements on
September 17, 2025.

This quarterly report and the financial statements (Attachment) present the operating,
special purpose and capital fund actual financial results for the three months ended September
30, 2025, the operating fund projected results to June 30, 2026, and comparative figures for
the 2025/26 amended budget. The 2025/26 projections include the impact of September 30,
2025 enrolment driven changes. The 2025/26 amended budget includes budget changes
approved by the Board on September 17, 2025.

The format of the reports reflects the annual financial statements presentation as defined by
the Ministry of Education and Child Care (MECC), specifically Schedules 2, 3A and 4.

The following is a descriptive analysis of the projected changes to the revenue and expense
estimates to the end of the fiscal year in comparison to budget.

OPERATING FUND

Revenue - $0.57M increase

MECC Operating Grants — $0.56M increase

The operating grant from the MECC is estimated to be $0.56M higher than budget due to
changes in student enrolment reported at September 30, 2025 as outlined in the table on the
following page.

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 76



First Quarter Financial Statements for 2025/26

Page 2 of 6
i Preliminary Budget Actual Enrolment Change
MECC Operating Grant
Enrolment| Funding Enrolment| Funding Enn}lment| Funding

July 2025 Enrolment Count

Grade 1-7 525 § 136,500 511 132,860 (14) § (3,640)

Grade 8-9 285 74,100 299 77,740 14 3,640

Grade 10-12 J00 357,000 746 380,460 46 23,460

Supplemental 219,092 205,088 - (14,004)

Total Summer Learning 1,510 786,602 1,556 796,148 46 9,456
September 2025 Enrolment Count

Standard schools 16,234 146,351,854 16,062 144,801,752 (172) (1,550,102)

Continuing education 2 18,030 3 48,456 3 30,426

Alternate schools 285 2,569,275 273 2,461,095 (12) (108,180)

Online learning 20 145,600 12 86,450 (8) (59,150)

Home schooling 21 5,250 29 7,250 3 2,000

Course challenges 37 10,434 37 10,434 - -

Total September Enrolment Based Funding 16,599 149,100,443 16,419 147,415,437 (181) (1,685,006)
September 2025 Unique Student Needs

Inclusive Education - Level 1 13 666,900 13 666,900 -

Inclusive Education - Level 2 1,223 29,767,820 1,299 31,617,660 7o 1,849,840

Inclusive Education - Level 3 362 4,452,600 411 5,055,300 49 602,700

English language learning 1,866 3,386,790 1,782 3,234,330 (84) (152,460)

Indigenous education 1,403 2,511,370 1,387 2,482,730 (16) (28,640)

Adult education 26 143,630 20 115,819 (8) (33,811)

Equity of opportunity (vulnerable students) 499,319 499,319 - -

Total Supplement for Unigque Student Needs 4,893 41,434,429 4,912 43,672,058 19 2,237,629
Total MECC Operating Grant 5191,321,564 5191,883,643 5 562,079
*This table does not include operating grant funding that is not driven by enrolment up to September 30, 2025

September enrolment-based standard schools funding is $1.69M lower than budget due to
lower than projected enrolment. September unique student needs funding is $2.24M higher
than budget, primarily due to inclusive education enrolment for students with disabilities and
diverse abilities exceeding projection.

Operating Fund Expenses — $1.04M increase

Salaries and Benefits — $1.06M increase

Teacher salaries are estimated to be $0.72M lower than budget, primarily due to a $1.01M
(10.159 FTE) reduction from lower-than-projected September enrolment. This savings is
partially offset by $0.22M for 2.216 FTE non-enrolling teachers retained to support the
originally projected enrolment. An additional $0.07M increase in Summer Learning costs
further reduces the net savings.

Educational assistant salaries are $1.79M higher than budget due to a 26.091 FTE increase of
education assistant staffing costing $0.99M plus a $0.80M addition to the instructional bank
to support the higher than anticipated enrolment of students with disabilities and diverse
abilities.

Substitute salaries are $0.33M lower than budget primarily due to 3.276 FTE transferred to
the Classroom Enhancement Fund (CEF) for teacher release time salary. These costs were
confirmed as eligible CEF expenses by the MECC in June 2025.

Benefit costs reflect approximately 27% of salaries and have been adjusted to reflect the
above staffing changes.
Services and Supplies - $0.02M decrease

Services and Supplies are estimated to be $0.02M lower than budget.
2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 77



First Quarter Financial Statements for 2025/26
Page 3 of 6

Transfer to Local Capital - $0.25M

The transfer to local capital for child care has increased by $0.25M to reflect 50% of the
estimated portion of child care licensing fees collected in 2025/26 that pertain to costs to be
incurred in future years.

Net Operating Fund Deficit — $0.55M

The increase in operating revenue ($0.57M), combined with the overall increase in operating
expenses ($1.04M) and the higher transfer to local capital ($0.25M), results in a projected
net operating deficit of $0.72M. Of this amount, $0.17M is funded from the unrestricted
operating surplus carried forward from 2024/25, leaving $0.55M unfunded.

Staff are exploring additional budget adjustments to achieve a balanced amended budget and
avoid drawing on the contingency reserve to support current year operations.

SPECIAL PURPOSE FUNDS

Special Purpose Funds include funds received from the MECC and other sources that have
restrictions on how the funds are to be spent. Major Special Purpose Funds that continue in
2025/26 include the Classroom Enhancement Funds (CEF), School Generated Funds, Feeding
Futures Fund, CommunityLINK, Learning Improvement Fund and Annual Facilities Grant.

During the first quarter of 2025/26, $5.84M in special purpose contributions was received and
$3.77M was spent. At September 30, 2025, $4.89M remains available for future expenditures.

The projected annual results to June 30, 2026 reflect total funding for the year of $34.68M,
projected expenses of $34.47M, and $0.76M in capital asset purchases.

Classroom Enhancement Fund - Staffing

The school district has made a submission in October 2025 to the MECC for additional
Classroom Enhancement Funding (CEF) to reflect the actual additional teacher staffing
required to meet restored collective agreement requirements for classroom and non-enrolling
teachers. The additional funding required is summarized in the following table. If the required
funding is not provided by the MECC, the shortfall will have to be addressed through staffing
reductions and use of contingency reserve funds. The total number of additional teachers
required, which has already been allocated to schools, is 10.024 FTE and $1.23M higher than
budget.

Classroom Enhancement Fund Staffing | FTE | Amount
Elementary classroom teachers 84.030 5 10,565,974
Secondary classroom teachers 61.742 7,763,501
Mon-enrolling teachers 51.972 6,534,997
Total CEF required to meet restored collective agreement requirements 197.744 24,864,472
Total CEF reflected in the preliminary budget 187.720 23,635,071
Additional CEF required 10.024 % 1,229,401

Classroom Enhancement Fund - Remedies

A submission to the MECC will be made in November 2025 with the estimated cost of remedies
for the month of October 2025 which will be used by the MECC to project the cost through to
the end of the fiscal year for purposes of setting the estimated December 2025 special purpose
grant. These estimates for remedies are not reflected in the attached first quarter financial
statements.

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 78



First Quarter Financial Statements for 2025/26
Page 4 of 6

CAPITAL FUND

The net book value of capital assets is $249.47M at September 30, 2025 which represents
$41.55M net investment in sites; $196.49M in buildings; and $11.43M in furniture and
equipment, vehicles, computer software and hardware. This net book value represents the
historical cost of all school district capital assets less accumulated amortization of depreciable
asset after acquisition; it does not reflect current market value to sell or replace the assets.

During the first quarter of 2025/26, $14.41M (representing $14.31M MECC Bylaw Capital and
Other Provincial and $0.10M Local Capital funds) has been spent on capital projects in
progress as follows:

e Annual Facility Grant funded projects ($2.77M)

e Eric Langton Elementary seismic replacement and expansion ($9.87M)

e Pitt Meadows Secondary School seismic replacement ($0.29M)

e Golden Ears Elementary addition ($0.05M)

e Blue Mountain Elementary addition ($0.04M)

e HVAC upgrades at various schools ($1.29M)

e New temporary classrooms setup ($0.05M)

e Harry Hooge Elementary seismic upgrade & addition project definition report ($0.05M)

The Land Capital Restricted Fund was $3.84M at September 30, 2025 and is comprised of
school site acquisition charges which may be used only to purchase Ministry-approved sites
for new schools.

Local Capital

The Board’s Local Capital fund is comprised of previous years’ available operating surpluses,
which have been transferred to Local Capital with Board approval and proceeds from the
disposal of land. Capital asset additions funded locally are reported in the Local Capital fund.

The following table summarizes the balances of Board-approved uses of Local Capital and the
contingency reserve, and changes in these balances for the period.

Balance at Preliminary Balance at
Local Capital Fund Jun 30, 2025 Budget Transfer | Contributions Spending Sep 30, 2025
Jul 1, 2025
Board Approved Uses of Local Capital

Information technology capital plan s 2,909,084 S 851,039 3 - s [62,941) & 3,697,182
Facilities equipment and vehicles capital plan 919,721 144,396 - (29,3786) 1,034,741
Child care capital 394,807 313,750 - - 708,557
Emergency preparedness 10,730 - - - 10,730
Virtual boardroom 9,284 - - (790) B,494

Strategic facilities plan implementation
New temporary classrooms 1,795,857 - - [54,593) 1,741,265
Capital planning 301,583 - - (50,761) 250,822
Sustainability upgrades 864,081 - 59,252 (7,995) 915,338
Other facilities renewal 1,498,675 - - - 1,498,675
Capital cost share - Eric Langton Elementary 700,000 - - - 700,000
9,403,822 1,309,185 59,252 (206,455 10,565,804
Contingency reserve held in local capital 2,688,157 - - - 2,688,157
Total Local Capital Fund $ 12,091,979 $ 1,309,185 & 59,252 §  [206,455) § 13,253,961

The capital planning balance of $0.25M represents the Board-approved allocation of $0.65M
less accumulated spending of $0.40M for the Harry Hooge seismic upgrade and addition
project definition report.

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 79



First Quarter Financial Statements for 2025/26
Page 5 of 6

Contingency Reserve

The Board of Education is responsible for ensuring the district is protected financially from
extraordinary circumstances which would negatively impact school district operations and the
education of students. To discharge this responsibility, the board maintains a contingency
reserve of at least 1% of operating expenses and not exceeding 3% of operating expenses to
mitigate any negative impact such circumstances might cause. This contingency reserve is
funded from available operating surplus and may be used for operating and/or capital
expenditures under certain circumstances outlined in board policy 4204 Accumulated Surplus.

As of September 30, 2025, the contingency reserve held in local capital totals $2.69M,
representing 1.25% of 2025/26 budget operating expenses.

RISKS TO PROJECTIONS

Revenue

The provincial operating grant included in these estimates may not be the same as the
operating grant distributed by the MECC for 2025/26. The main factors that create variances
of provincial funding are actual funded enrolment at February and May 2026, Classroom
Enhancement Fund allocations, and other provincial funding announcements made during the
remainder of 2025/26.

Expenses

Significant estimates for salaries and benefits include projected average teacher salaries,
utilization of substitution budgets, and anticipated changes to benefit rates. Actual costs may
vary from projections. There is a financial risk associated with potential general wage
increases for employee groups that may not be fully funded by the MECC. If such increases
are negotiated or mandated, and insufficient corresponding funding is provided, the district
may need to absorb the additional costs within existing budgets. This could result in budget
reallocations, reductions in other areas, or increased pressure on reserves.

The actual services, supplies and utilities expenses may be higher than the current
projections, which would have to be funded from the contingency reserve. Changes in weather
patterns and unexpected utilities cost increases may result in increased utilities costs.

Capital Projects

Due to their magnitude, capital projects have the potential to significantly impact the district’s
financial position. While there is no centralized process for assessing the risk of the entire
capital program, individual project risk assessments are conducted on an ongoing basis.
Project agreements with the MECC include contingencies to help mitigate financial risk.

Smaller projects consider contingency planning within their overall budget and are managed
internally. Additionally, the contingency reserve held in local capital of $2.69M is available to
mitigate risks associated with capital projects.

Other Assets

Current budget allocations are insufficient to fully support the procurement, maintenance,
and timely replacement of the district’'s tangible capital assets. As a result, deferred
maintenance continues to grow, and the facility condition index continues to deteriorate.

IT hardware, facilities equipment, and vehicles may not be refreshed regularly, depending on
the availability and appropriation of operating surplus to fund the multi-year capital plans for
these assets. Any major equipment failures during 2025/26 may need to be funded from the
contingency reserve held in local capital.

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 80



First Quarter Financial Statements for 2025/26
Page 6 of 6

Tariffs

Recent U.S. tariffs are expected to increase the cost of goods and materials, impacting
expenses in areas such as construction, facility maintenance, technology, and classroom
supplies. As procurement and capital projects become more expensive, the district may face
additional budget pressures, potentially requiring the reallocation of funds or delays in
planned upgrades and initiatives. Over the long-term, this may strain operational flexibility
and limit investments in educational improvements.

RECOMMENDATION

THAT the Board approve the First Quarter Financial Statements for 2025/26.

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 81



ATTACHMENT

School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows)
Schedule of Changes in the Operating Fund
Quarter 1 Projection for the Year Ending June 30, 2026

Operating Revenue by Source
Grants

Provincial Grants - Ministry of Education and Child Care
Local Education Agreement (LEA) Recovery
Other Ministry of Education and Child Care Grants

Provincial Grants - Other
Federal Grants
Total Grants
Tuition
Other Revenue
LEA - Direct Funding from First Nations
Rentals & Leases
Investment Income
Total Other Revenue
Total Operating Revenue
Operating Expense by Type
Salaries
Teachers
Principals and Vice Principals
Educational Assistants
Support Staff
Other Professionals
Substitutes
Total Salaries
Employee Benefits
Total Salaries and Benefits

Services and Supplies
Services
Student Transportation
Professional Development and Travel
Rentals and Leases
Dues and Fees
Insurance
Supplies
Utilities
Total Services and Supplies
Total Operating Expenses

Interfund & Local Capital
Tangible Capital Assets Purchased
Transfer to Local Capital
Total Interfund and Local Capital
Total Expenses

Surplus (Deficit) for 2025/26
Before 2024/25 surplus carryforward
Use of Restricted 2024/25 Operating Surplus in 2025/26
Before 2024/25 unrestricted surplus carryforward
Unrestricted Surplus from 2024/25
After 2024/25 surplus carryforward

Schedule 2

2025/26 Actual Projected 2025/26 2025/26
Current Annual to Oct to Current Annual Variance from
Budget Sep 30, 2025 Jun 30, 2026 Projection Budget
$ $ $ $ $
198,045,996 22,537,431 176,070,644 198,608,075 562,079
(613,078) (69,580) (543,498) (613,078) -
3,138,950 769,311 2,369,639 3,138,950 -
417,800 - 417,800 417,800 -
362,900 52,050 310,850 362,900 -
201,352,568 23,289,212 178,625,435 201,914,647 562,079
11,272,469 2,116,718 9,162,901 11,279,619 7,150
1,051,747 174,924 876,823 1,051,747 -
613,078 61,307 551,771 613,078 -
886,716 305,609 581,107 886,716 -
1,105,000 394,343 710,657 1,105,000 -
14,929,010 3,052,901 11,883,259 14,936,160 7,150
216,281,578 26,342,113 190,508,694 216,850,807 569,229
90,921,352 9,922,917 80,282,641 90,205,558 715,794
9,832,123 2,487,536 7,344,587 9,832,123 -
25,456,187 3,215,224 24,035,685 27,250,909 (1,794,722)
15,389,048 3,158,742 12,230,306 15,389,048 -
7,688,323 1,641,294 6,047,029 7,688,323 -
7,035,114 693,227 6,013,165 6,706,392 328,722
156,322,147 21,118,940 135,953,413 157,072,353 (750,206)
41,757,394 6,141,168 35,929,287 42,070,455 (313,061)
198,079,541 27,260,108 171,882,700 199,142,808 (1,063,267)
8,042,310 2,380,705 5,661,605 8,042,310 -
729,890 61,128 697,499 758,627 (28,737)
1,372,931 88,448 1,298,483 1,386,931 (14,000)
9,407 - 9,407 9,407 -
172,412 122,901 49,511 172,412 -
976,972 251,295 725,677 976,972 -
4,900,536 877,871 3,959,030 4,836,901 63,635
2,815,072 487,435 2,327,637 2,815,072 -
19,019,530 4,269,782 14,728,850 18,998,632 20,898
217,099,071 31,529,890 186,611,550 218,141,440 (1,042,369)
561,429 131,211 430,218 561,429 -
1,058,185 1,309,185 - 1,309,185 (251,000)
1,619,614 1,440,396 430,218 1,870,614 (251,000)
218,718,685 32,970,286 187,041,768 220,012,054 (1,293,369)
(2,437,107) (6,628,173) 3,466,926 (3,161,247) (724,140)
2,437,107 2,437,107 - 2,437,107 -
- (4,191,066) 3,466,926 (724,140) (724,140)
- 173,995 173,995 173,995
- (4,191,066) 3,640,921 (550,145) (550,145)

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 82



Deferred Revenue, Jul 1, 2025

Add: Restricted Grants
Provincial Grants - MECC
Other
Investment Income

Less: Allocated to Revenue

Deferred Revenue, Sep 30, 2025

Revenue
Provincial Grants - MECC
Other
Investment Income
Total Revenue
Expenses
Salaries
Teachers
Principals and Vice Principals
Educational Assistants
Support Staff
Other Professionals
Substitutes
Total Salaries
Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies
Total Expenses

Net Revenue before Interfund Transfers

Interfund Transfers
Tangible Capital Assets Purchased

Net Revenue (Expense)

School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows)
Schedule of Changes in Special Purpose Funds
Period Ended September 30, 2025

Schedule 3A

Annual Learning  Scholarships _ School Ready, Professional _ National Classroom Classroom Classroom FirstNation  Mental  Early Childhood  ECL Feeding  Health DualCredit  Youth Total
Facility ~ Improvement and Generated  Strong  Set, Community  Learning School Student Health  EducationDual (EarlyCare  Futures  Career Expansion  Education
Grant Fund Bursaries Funds Start  leartn  OLEP LINK Grant  Food Program Fund - Overhead Fund-Staffing Fund-Remedies Transportation inSchools Credit Program &Learning)  Fund Grants  Fund  Support Fund

$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

- 11,116 217,068 1,328,169 - 5942 2,109 - 225605 197,936 - - - - 115,519 22,417 24,734 - 65253 36,641 564,816 2,817,324

517,597 68,461 190,400 39,445 - 63,685 - - 82,903 2,368,095 - - 51,000 - 87,500 1,318,075 - - - 4787361

1,000 1,008,964 46350 1,056,314

517,597 68,461 1,000 1,008964 190,400 39,445 - 63,685 - - 82,903 2,368,095 - - 51,000 - 87,500 1,318,075 - - 46350 5,843,475

96,387 81,575 - 429654 37,851 3,864 32,075 77,656 2,564 64,758 134,949 2,506,262 - - 8680 4,380 28274 117,676 5126 34,233 106,590 3,772,554

421,210 (1,998) 218,068 1,907,479 152,549 41523  (29,966)  (13,971) 223,041 133,178 (52,046)  (138,167) - - 157,839 18,037 83,960 1,200,399 60,127 2,408 504,576 4,888,245

96,387 81,575 - 37,851 3,864 32,075 77,656 2,564 64,758 134,949 2,506,262 - - 8680 4380 28274 117,676 5126 34,233 - 3,236310

- 429654 106,590 536,244

96,387 81,575 - 429654 37,851 3,864 32,075 77,656 2,564 64,758 134,949 2,506,262 - - 8680 4380 28274 117,676 5126 34,233 106,590 3,772,554

- 10349 3,417 1,991 - - 1,952,119 - - - - - - 3,983 - - 1,971,859

11,095 9,705 - - 57,927 - - - - - - - - - - 78,727

- 58,287 - 26527 3,858 - 43882 - - - - - - - - - 35,169 - 3,561 - 171,284

- 1,159 - - - - 18,431 - - - - - - - - - - 19,590

- - - - - - - - 3227 21,159 20,717 - - - 45,103

- - - - - 33,887 - - - - - - - - - - 33,887

- 58,287 - 1,159 26527 3,858 21,444 57,004 1,991 - 110245 1,952,119 - - - 3227 21,159 55,886 3,983 3,561 - 2,320450

- 23,288 - 2 11,324 6 5823 20,134 573 - 24,703 554,143 - - - 922 6,959 17,576 1,143 672 - 667,268

44,051 - 462,534 - - 4808 518 - - - - - 8680 231 156 44,214 30,000 67,508 662,700

44,051 81,575 - 463,695 37,851 3,864 32,075 77,656 2,564 - 134,949 2,506,262 - - 8680 4380 28274 117,676 5126 34,233 67,508 3,650,419

52,336 - - (38,081) - - - - - 64,758 - - - - - - - - - - 39,082 122,135

(52,336) - - 34,041 - - - - - (64,758) - - - - - - - - - - (39,082) (122,135)

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 83



Deferred Revenue, Jul 1, 2025

Add: Restricted Grants
Provincial Grants - MECC
Provincial Grants - MECC Recoveries
Other
Investment Income

Less: Allocated to Revenue

Deferred Revenue, Jun 30, 2026

Revenue
Provincial Grants - MECC
Other
Investment Income
Total Revenue
Expenses
Salaries
Teachers
Principals and Vice Principals
Educational Assistants
Support Staff
Other Professionals
Substitutes
Total Salaries
Employee Benefits
Services and Supplies
Total Expenses

Net Revenue before Interfund Transfers

Interfund Transfers
Tangible Capital Assets Purchased

Net Revenue (Expense)

School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows)
Schedule of Changes in Special Purpose Funds
Year Ending June 30, 2026

Schedule 3A

Annual Learning Scholarships School Ready, Professional _ National Classroom Classroom Classroom FirstNation  Mental _Early Childhood ECL Feeding  Health Dual Credit Youth Total
Facility  Improvement and Generated  Strong Set, Community  Learning School Student Health  EducationDual (EarlyCare  Futures  Career  Expansion  Education
Grant Fund Bursaries Funds Start Learn OLEP LINK Grant  Food Program Fund - Overhead Fund - Staffing Fund - Remedies Transportation in Schools  Credit Program & Learning) Fund Grants Fund  Support Fund
$ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $ $

- 11,116 217,068 1,328,169 - 594 2,109 - 225,605 197,936 - - - - 115519 22,417 24,734 - 65253 36,641 564,816 2,817,324

517,597 684,610 272,000 56,350 305597 636,848 316,890 829,033 23,680,952 80,498 51,000 175000 1,882,964 29,489,339

35,000 4,800,000 360,000 5,195,000

517,597 684,610 35000 4,800,000 272,000 56,350 305597 636,848 316,890 829,033 23,680,952 - 80,498 51,000 - 175000 1,882,964 360,000 34,684,339

517,597 684,610 35000 4,800,000 272,000 56,350 305597 636,848 225,605 514,826 829,033 23,680,952 - 80,498 51,000 22,417 175000 1,882,964 65,253 36,641 360,000 35,232,191

- 11,116 217,068 1,328,169 - 592 2,109 - - - - - - - 115519 - 24,734 - - - 564,816 2,269,472

517,597 684,610 272,000 56,350 305597 636848 225605 514,826 829,033 23,680,952 80,498 51,000 22417 175000 1,882,964 65253 36,641 30,037,191

35,000 4,800,000 360,000 5,195,000

517,597 684,610 35,000 4,800,000 272,000 56,350 305,597 636,848 225,605 514,826 829,033 23,680,952 - 80,498 51,000 22,417 175,000 1,882,964 65,253 36,641 360,000 35,232,191

20,816 108,206 28,672 40,000 18,855,762 59,514 48,555 19,161,525

56,930 36,484 230,387 323,801

566,965 40,000 200,682 22,215 389,735 297,307 4,921 1,521,825

25,000 94,924 119,924

9,206 78596 93,852 181,654

20,000 21,651 35,000 348,712 3,933 9,341 438,637

- 566,965 - 85000 200,682 43,031 165136 476542 75,000 - 674,023 18,855,762 - - 3,933 9,206 138,110 400,500 48,555 4,921 - 21,747,366

117,645 15000 70918 13319 41,499 137,980 19,120 146,010 4,825,190 936 3211 34,690 116,082 16,698 1,720 5,560,018

63,546 - 35,000 4,700,000 400 98,962 22,326 131,485 210,826 9,000 80,498 46,131 10,000 2,200 1,366,382 30,000 360,000 7,166,756

63,546 684,610 35,000 4,800,000 272,000 56,350 305,597 636,848 225,605 210,826 829,033 23,680,952 - 80,498 51,000 22,417 175,000 1,882,964 65,253 36,641 360,000 34,474,140

454,051 - - - - - - - - 304,000 - - - - - - - - - - 758,051

(454,051) (304,000) (758,051)

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 84



School District No. 42 (Maple Ridge-Pitt Meadows)
Schedule of Changes in Capital Funds
Year Ended September 30, 2025

Revenue
Provincial Grants - MECC
School Site Acquisition Fees Spent
Other Revenue
Investment Income
Amortization of Deferred Capital Revenue
Total Revenue

Expenses
Amortization of Tangible Capital Assets
Operations and Maintenance
Total Expenses

Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the year
Net Transfers from other funds
Tangible Capital Assets Purchased
Local Capital
Total Net Transfers
Other Adjustments to Fund Balances
Tangible Capital Assets Purchased from Local Capital
Tangible Capital Assets WIP Purchased from Local Capital

Total Other Adjustments to Fund Balances

Total Capital Surplus (Deficit) for the period

Accumulated Capital Surplus, beginning of year

Accumulated Capital Surplus, Sep 30, 2025

Schedule 4

2025/26 2025/26 Actual Results to Sep 30, 2025
Preliminary Invested in Tangible Local Fund
Budget Capital Assets Capital Balance
S s S S
59,252 59,252
7,011,541 1,738,182 1,738,182
7,011,541 1,738,182 59,252 1,797,434
11,013,648 2,691,293 2,691,293
11,013,648 2,691,293 2,691,293
(4,002,107) (953,111) 59,252 (893,859)
744,013 253,397 253,397
1,058,185 1,309,185 1,309,185
1,802,198 253,397 1,309,185 1,562,582
102,593 (102,593) -
103,862 (103,862) -
206,455 (206,455) -
(2,199,909) (493,259) 1,161,982 668,724
71,706,157 12,091,979 83,798,137
71,212,899 13,253,962 84,466,860

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 85



’) Public Board Meeting
/\ December 3, 2025

School District 42 Decision Memo
Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Item 7
From: Teresa Downs, Superintendent of Schools

Richard Rennie, Secretary Treasurer

Topic: Trustee Motion:
Ad Hoc Advocacy Committee of The Whole Terms of Reference

BACKGROUND
At the November 12, 2025 public board meeting the following motion was approved:

THAT the Board request the Chair to establish an ad hoc advocacy committee of the whole
to develop and implement a strategy to advocate for a more equitable allocation of
CommunityLINK funding, the Equity of Opportunity Supplement, and National School Food
Program funding from the Ministry of Education and Child Care.

Following that meeting an Ad Hoc Advocacy Committee of the Whole Terms Reference
(Attachment) has been developed for the Board’s review.
RECOMMENDATION

THAT the Board approve the Terms of Reference for the Ad Hoc Advocacy Committee
of the Whole: Equitable Funding.

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 86



ATTACHMENT

Ad Hoc Committee of the Whole: Equitable Funding - Terms of Reference

The Ad Hoc Committee of the Whole on Equitable Funding (the “Committee”) is established by the Board of
Education to explore ways to advocate for and achieve the equitable distribution of CommunityLINK, Equity
of Opportunity Supplement (EOS), and National School Food Program (NSFP) funding for School District No.
42 (Maple Ridge—-Pitt Meadows).

The Committee will examine current provincial funding structures, develop advocacy strategies, and provide
recommendations to the Board of Education for consideration.

The Ad Hoc Committee of the Whole Responsibilities

e Review the current funding models and their impact on School District No. 42.

e Identify inequities in the provincial allocation of funding.

e Gather and review relevant research and comparative district data.

e Explore options, strategies, and pathways to recommend to the Ministry of Education and Child Care
to achieve equitable funding for the district.

e Develop and recommend advocacy approaches for Board consideration.

e Provide updates and final recommendations to the Board of Education.

The Committee is advisory in nature and does not have decision-making authority.

Confidentiality

Deliberations and information received at Committee meetings shall be treated as private and confidential
and shall not be published, released, or disclosed except to trustees of the Board, the Superintendent, the
Secretary Treasurer, or as required under the School Act or Freedom of Information and Protection of Privacy
Act.

Composition

e The Committee is a committee of the whole; all trustees may attend and participate.

e Meetings will be chaired by the Board Chairperson or designate.

e The Committee will be assisted by the Secretary Treasurer, Superintendent of Schools, and
additional district staff may attend or be invited to participate, as required.

e All committee members shall commit to ethical conduct, proper use of authority, decorum, and
professional conduct.

Minutes

e  Minutes of Committee and recommendations shall be recorded by the Secretary Treasurer or
designate.

e Minutes shall record and recommendations but will not include the contents of speeches.

e Verbalreports from Committee members will not be recorded unless they result in a formal
Committee recommendation.

e Acopy of all Committee minutes shall be provided to the Board of Education.

Reporting

The Committee will report to the Board of Education on its progress and will bring forward any
recommendations arising from its work.

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 87



Duration

The Committee will operate from the time these Terms of Reference are approved until:
e the established goals of the Committee have been achieved, or
e the end of the current term of office,
whichever occurs first.

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 88



’) Public Board Meeting
g fA December 3, 2025

School District 42 Information Memo
Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Item 8
From: Elaine Yamamoto, Board Chairperson

Topic: Chairperson’s Update

BACKGROUND:

The Board Chairperson will provide the Board with a verbal update. The update will include
the following topic(s):

e BCSTA Trustee Academy

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT the Board receive the Chairperson’s Update, for information.

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 89



’) Public Board Meeting
/\ December 3, 2025
School District 42 Information Memo
Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows Item 9

From: Elaine Yamamoto, Board Chairperson

Topic: Trustee Appointments to Committees and Community Liaison Groups

BACKGROUND

In accordance with Board Policy 2320 Board Committees and Trustee Representation, the
Board Chairperson annually appoints trustees to standing committees and community liaison
groups to ensure effective governance and representation. Appointments are made for a one-
year term and are intended to promote effective communication and representation between
the Board and its partner organizations.

In previous years, the Board appointed a trustee representation to the Ridge Meadows
Overdose Community Action Team (RMOCAT). Trustee representation is no longer assigned
going forward as RMOCAT it is in the processing of dissolving and incorporating as an
independent non-profit organization.

Trustee Appointments to Committees and Community Liaison Groups for the period from
December 2025 to October 2026 are outlined in the Attachment.
RECOMMENDATION

THAT the Board receive the Trustee Appointments to Committees and Community
Liaison Groups for the period from December 2025 to October 2026, for information.

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 90


https://www.sd42.ca/assets/media/2320-Board-Committees-Trustee-Representation.pdf

ATTACHMENT

2

TRUSTEE APPOINTMENTS

School District 42 TO COMMITTEES AND COMMUNITY LIAISON GROUPS
For the period from December 2025 to October 2026

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows

Committees of the Board

Facilities Planning Committee of the Whole
Finance Committee of the Whole

Board Policy Development Committee

School District Advisory Committees

Education Advisory Committee

Accessibility Advisory Committee

Committee Representation with Trustee Voting Authority

City of Maple Ridge Engaged, Healthy Community Advisory Committee
City of Maple Ridge Liveable Community Advisory Committee

City of Maple Ridge Municipal Advisory Committee on Accessibility &
Inclusiveness

City of Pitt Meadows Community Support & Accessibility Committee

Youth Planning Table

Other Representation
Student Voice

District Parent Advisory Council

Indigenous Education Council

BCPSEA

BCSTA Provincial Council

City of Pitt Meadows Community Service Awards Task Force

English Language Learners Consortium

Maple Ridge Pitt Meadows Arts Council

Ridge Meadows Education Foundation

All Trustees
All Trustees

Kim Dumore, Hudson Campbell
(Elaine Yamamoto, Alternate)

Pascale Shaw, Hudson Campbell
(Mike Murray, Alternate)
Kim Dumore
(Pascale Shaw, Alternate)

Mike Murray
(Elaine Yamamoto, Alternate)

Pascale Shaw

(Elaine Yamamoto, Alternate)
Kim Dumore

(Kathleen Sullivan, Alternate)
Kathleen Sullivan

(Hudson Campbell, Alternate)

Hudson Campbell
(Kim Dumore, Alternate)

All Trustees, Rotating
All Trustees, Rotating

Kathleen Sullivan, Elaine Yamamoto
(All Trustees, Alternates)

Elaine Yamamoto
(No Alternate)

Mike Murray

(Elaine Yamamoto, Alternate)
Hudson Campbell

(Kathleen Sullivan, Alternate)

Elaine Yamamoto

(Kathleen Sullivan, Alternate)
Pascale Shaw

(Hudson Campbell, Alternate)

Mike Murray
(Kathleen Sullivan, Alternate)

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 91



’) Public Board Meeting
A December 3, 2025

School District 42 Information Memo
Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows
Item 10
From: Teresa Downs, Superintendent of Schools

Topic: Superintendent’s Update

BACKGROUND:

The Superintendent will provide the Board with a verbal update. The update will include the
following topic(s):

e Secondary Schedule Engagement - Response to Recommendations

RECOMMENDATION:

THAT the Board receive the Superintendent’s Update, for information.

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 92



’) Public Board Meeting

/\ December 3, 2025

School District 42 Information Memo
Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows

Item 11

From: Kim Dumore, Trustee

Topic: Trustee Report: City of Maple Ridge Municipal Advisory Committee on
Accessibility & Inclusiveness

Date of Meeting: November 20, 2025
Items Discussed:

MACAI Awards

The Draft Nomination and Criteria for the MACAI Awards were submitted to the committee
and accepted. The nomination period will run from January 26 to May 18 and will be available
on the City's website. The awards are open to persons with disabilities, individuals who
support a person with a disability, as well as businesses and organizations that demonstrate
commitment to accessibility and inclusion.

Accessibility BC Portal

The committee reviewed the draft submission form for the Accessibility B.C. Portal prior to its
launch. As required under the Accessible B.C. Act, municipalities must provide a feedback
portal for residents to submit accessibility-related concerns. Although the City of Maple Ridge
currently has a basic portal on the MACAI webpage, it has not received any feedback to date.
To improve usability, it was recommended that a more user-friendly form be created, along
with a marketing plan to increase awareness among residents and supporters of persons with
disabilities. The City’s website will be updated in January, and promotional materials will be
developed to support the rollout.

Age-Dementia-Friendly Initiative (ADFI) Score Card

Work continues on the Age-Friendly and Dementia-Friendly Strategy as part of the ADFI
initiative. The City has received global recognition for its leadership in age-friendly planning.
The Age-Friendly and Dementia-Friendly task groups have now merged and completed a
comprehensive scan with recommendations that will be presented to Council. These
recommendations will help guide the City’s age-friendly work.

Accessibility Strategy — Implementation Plan

A new subcommittee has been established to review the Accessibility Strategy and develop
an updated implementation plan. This process takes place every three years to ensure
ongoing alignment with accessibility legislation and best practices. The completed
implementation plan will be presented to Council in the first quarter of next year.

Action Items referred to the Board of Education:

e None

Date of Next Meeting:
January 22, 2026

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 93



’) Public Board Meeting

/\ December 3, 2025

School District 42 Information Memo
Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows

Item 12

From: Elaine Yamamoto, Trustee

Topic: Trustee Report:
City of Maple Ridge Liveable Community Advisory Committee

Dates of Meetings: September 11 and October 23, 2025

Items Discussed:
September 11 Meeting:

The Manager of Transportation provided an overview of the Bikeway Improvements projects
on 240 Street, highlighting the scope of the work and the anticipated impact, including
improved All Ages and Abilities (AAA) cycling connections and a minor reduction in parking
availability. Desigh maps were displayed to further illustrate the proposed changes.
Committee members asked questions and engaged in discussion.

The Manager of Transportation updated members on several transportation projects in the
City, including the installation of speed humps and other traffic calming methods across the
city, the creation of a cycling pathway on 216 Street to connect to Lougheed Highway. Staff
also highlighted the collaboration with the School District to implement 11 school zone road
decal locations to encourage reduced vehicle speeds near schools. Proposed traffic
improvements near Hammond Elementary in the Maple Crescent area were noted, with
information about an upcoming open house for public feedback to be posted on Engaged
Maple Ridge, including the date and additional details.

October 23 Meeting:
Revisions to Highway Traffic Bylaw were presented for discussion. Of note:

Snow Clearing

e Proposed Change: Add a dedicated snow clearing section clarifying property owner
responsibilities and timelines. e Sidewalks: full clearance e Multi-use paths: 1.2m e
Structures where snow may fall on the sidewalk or highway: full clearance

e Rationale: Promotes safer sidewalks, multi-use paths, cycle tracks, and roadways
during winter months and supports consistent enforcements

Idling Prohibitions

e Proposed Change: Add a new section prohibiting unnecessary idling beyond a defined
time limit e 3 minutes within a 60-minute timeframe ¢ 10 minutes for temperatures
under 0°C

e Rationale: Supports environmental sustainability, air quality, and community
livability

Driveway Parking Clearances

e Proposed Change: Reduce the minimum clearance for parking adjacent to driveways
from 3.0m ¢ 1.5m from top of flare.

e Rationale: Increases usable parking supply while maintaining visibility and access.
Consistent with parking clearances in Surrey, Vancouver, and Richmond, as well as
TAC guidelines.

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 94



Trustee Report: City of Maple Ridge Liveable Community Advisory Committee
Page 2 of 2

Next steps: Committee feedback will be incorporated before presenting changes to council
for approval. Public consultation and education will begin after approval.

Action Items referred to the Board of Education:

¢ None

Date of Next Meeting: November 27, 2025

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 95



Public Board Meeting

é/A'D December 3, 2025

School District 42 Information Memo

From:

Topic:

Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows

Item 13

Katie Sullivan, Trustee

Trustee Report:
City of Pitt Meadows Community Support & Accessibility Committee

Date of Meeting: November 24, 2025

Items Discussed:

Space Needs Discussion

Director of Planning & Development facilitated a discussion with committee
members on space needs for community services and programs in Pitt Meadows

Various suggestions made for the need of more meeting space to be available for
agencies. Needed space with tables/seating for 30+ people IU

Investigate use of Pitt Meadows Heritage Hall

Need for additional storage/kitchen space for food security

Updates from Community Outreach Agencies

RM Seniors Society — Looking at updating website soon through a grant, updated
the Grapevine magazine with new format

Community Network - Getting into Xmas season, partnered with Fraser Valley
Regional Library (FVRL) to host the Silvertones Xmas Tea, AGM coming up next
week, Intergenerational Dinner to be held Dec. 18 at the Greg Moore Centre with
over 150 tickets sold

Salvation Army - Kettles out with 4 locations in PM and 8 locations in MR, trying
to change the narrative of where the donations go - more to food security and
community services, Christmas Toy Village supports 450-500 individuals

FVRL - Spreading the word of various equipment to be lent out including Gimbal
camera, air quality monitors, thermal leak detectors, energy meters, small solar
panels for camping trips, portal DVD players, radon detectors

MRPM Community Services - Saturday hosting annual Silent Auction fundraiser,
Seniors Lunch to be held Dec. 16 have sold 300 tickets to seniors

Action Items referred to the Board of Education:

e Can forward any suggestions from Board regarding Space Needs for children and
youth in Pitt Meadows to Patrick Ward at the February meeting

Date of Next Meeting: February 23, 2026

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 96



’) Public Board Meeting

/\ December 3, 2025

School District 42 Information Memo
Maple Ridge & Pitt Meadows

Item 14

From: Elaine Yamamoto, Board Chairperson

Topic: Question Period

NOTICE TO THE PUBLIC

Question period is restricted to questions only — statements and debate will not be permitted.
Questions, with the exception of Trustee questions, will be limited to one question per person.

Members of the public can submit questions for the board by emailing them to board@sd42.ca
by no later 30 minutes before the start of the meeting. The email subject line should read:
QUESTION PERIOD.

Questions will be answered in the order they are received. This agenda item has a time limit
of 10 minutes; extension is at the discretion of the Board.

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 97


mailto:board@sd42.ca

Public Board Meeting
A December 3, 2025

. Information Memo
SchoolMQelédE{&St’EMf}d% Item 15
Topic: Public Record of Closed Meeting Business

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 72 of the School Act, the following record provides a
general statement as to the nature of the matters discussed and the general nature of
decisions reached at the following meeting(s) from which persons other than trustees or
officers of the Board, or both, were excluded.

November 12, 2025 Closed

Territory Acknowledgement Delivered

Call to Order Meeting called to order at 2:01pm
Motion of Exclusion Approved

Approval of Agenda Approved

Approval of Minutes Approved

Superintendent of Schools Information Items Received

Adjournment Meeting adjourned at 2:35pm

2025-12-03 Public Board Meeting Agenda Package - Page 98


https://www.bclaws.gov.bc.ca/civix/document/id/complete/statreg/96412_00_multi

	Agenda Public
	ITEM 1 Opening Procedures
	ITEM 1 ATTACHMENT A 2025-11-07 Letter from Board Chair re Letter of Support McKenney Creek Restoration Project (signed)
	ITEM 1 ATTACHMENT B 2025-11-12 Public Board Meeting Minutes
	ITEM 2 Presentation
	ITEM 3 Student Advisory Committee Terms of Reference
	ITEM 3 ATTACHMENT Student Advisory Committee revised Terms of Reference
	ITEM 4 School Growth Plans
	ITEM 4 ATTACHMENT School Growth Plans
	ALB School Growth Plan  Literacy
	ARE School Growth Plan ARE Goal #1
	Alouette - SGP 2025 2026
	BME School Growth Plan 2025-26 - Second
	c'usqunela SEL Goal 2025 2026
	DJE - School Growth Plan - Literacy 2025
	EME - School Growth Plan Numeracy and Literacy 2025
	Eric Langton - SGP 2025-26
	FVE - School Growth Plan - Reading 2025
	Odyssey(FVE) - Growth Plan - Numeracy 2025
	Glenwood - SGP 
	GEE School Growth Plan Literacy - Final
	HAE - Literacy SGP 2025
	HAE - Numeracy SGP 2025
	HHE School Growth Plan Literacy October 30
	HPE - 2025-26 School Growth Plan - Literacy
	KCE 2025 26 School Growth Plan Goal 2
	LVE Growth Plan Literacy 2025-2026 
	LVE Growth Plan SEL 2025-2026 D 
	MRE - School Growth Plan - Literacy 2025
	PME - School Growth Plan LITERACY 2025
	PME - School Growth Plan SEL-RESILIENCY 2025
	WCE SGP 2025 26 LIteracy updated
	WCE SGP 2025 26 SEL updated
	WHE School Growth Plan Draft Goal 1
	WHE School Growth Plan Draft Goal 2
	YEN Growth Plan Literacy 2025-26
	GSS School Growth Plan 2025 Goal 1 final
	GSS School Growth Plan 2025 Goal 2 final
	updated GSS School Growth Plan 2025 Goal 3 final 
	MRSS Growth Plan 1
	PMSS Growth Plan Numeracy
	PMSS School Growth Plan_2025_2026_Goal 2_Equity (UPDATED)
	SRT School Goal #1 revised November 10
	SRT School Goal #2 2025 2026 Revise November 10
	THSS Goal #1 - School Growth Plan-updated 
	Connex School Growth Plan 25 26 Final

	ITEM 5 Preliminary Budget Process and Consultation Timeline for 2026-27
	ITEM 6 First Quarter Financial Statements 2025-26
	ITEM 6 ATTACHMENT First Quarter Financial Statements 2025-26
	ITEM 7 Ad Hoc Advocacy Committee of the Whole Terms of Reference
	ITEM 7 ATTACHMENT Ad Hoc Advocacy COTW Terms of Reference
	ITEM 8 Chairperson's Update
	ITEM 9 Trustee Appointments to Committees and Community Liaison Groups
	ITEM 9 ATTACHMENT Trustee Appointments to Committees and Community Liaison Groups 2025-26
	ITEM 10 Superintendent's Update
	ITEM 11 Trustee Report - MACAI
	ITEM 12 Trustee Report - CMR Liveable Community Advisory Committee
	ITEM 13 Trustee Report - CPM CSAC
	ITEM 14 Question Period
	ITEM 15 Public Record of Closed Meeting Business



